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re
Jacksboro

Mrrch :l l, 2025

J'hc Llonorablc Mayor. r\ltlcrrncn. anrl the Citizc:rs of thc City crf .lacLsboro

C.haptcr 103 ol'tlrc lcxas Murricipal C'orlc rccluircs lhal l nrunicipality shall havc i(s rccords and

accounts audited annr"rally rurl shirll hrve au annual flnancial staterneul prepaled based on tlte
auilit. This stltutory rceltrircnrcnt is addrcssctl il tlrc City of -laclisboro (City) finartcial
nranagcmcnI plan, rvhic:h includcs tirc objcctive that an Annrral Cotttprcltcnsive l''inancial f{cport
(r\CFR) lvill bc lllcparccl by thc Financc Dcpartntcrtl. l"lrc Annual Clotuplchcusivc [iinancial
lleporl includes a ctlnrpletc sct ot't'inancial slatenreuts presertterl in cottfbrttrity u,itlt geuelally

acccptcd acctltrnting prirrciplcs ((jAAP). anr-l aurlitctl itt itccurdattcc with generally acccptcd

audiling slanclarils by a lirnr ol'liccnsecl certillcd public irccounl:rnts. Accordingly, tltc Annual
Courplchcnsivc Financial lLcport lbr thc Clill ol' .lrtcksboro, Texas lbr the fiscal ycar cnclccl

Selrtember 3(), 202+. is heleb_v" issuetl.

This report consists ol' nranagrrlncnt's reprcs-enlaticrns ceirrccrning tltc ljnanccs ol' thc City.
Consccprcntly, nlatlagcnrcnt ilssulllcs lirll rcsllonsiLrility lirr thc corrtplclcrtcss itnd rcliability of all
the inibrruation presentecl in this rcport. To provide a reasonable basis {br rnaking
rcprcscntaliotrs, the City lras cslablishcel ir compreiltcnsivc irrter:ral cortlrol fratncrvork that is
dcsigncd bolh lo protect the Cil1,'s assrrls li'olr loss, thefi, or misusc and lo cotllrilc sulilcient
rcliablc inhrrnration lbr lhc prcparation o[' thc City's [inancial statcntcrtts in conlorrnity witlt
CiAAP. Because the cost of internal contlols slroukl not outu.eigh their benefits. the City's
courprchcnsivc lianrework ol irrtcnrul corrlrol.- has bccrr tlcsigned to providc rcasortublc. ratlrcr
rlran absolrrlc, assurancc lhal thc financial stalcnrcnls u,ill bc ll'cc l}om tnatcliaI trisstalcurcnts.
As rnanagcrlclll. wc asscrl that. to thc bcst olour knou'lcdgc and bclict. tltis llnancial rcport is

complete and reliable irt all rnate rial respects.

Thr.: City's l'inanc:ial stiltcutcllts havc trccn ludilcd by [dgin, Parknran, Flcrning & Flr.rrning, l)C.

1'lrc goal ol' thc inclcpcnclcnt audit u'as to providc lcascrnirblc assrlrancc that thc {irtancial

sratenents rll the City tirr the tjscal veaL enclerl Septcrnber 3(). 2024, are fl'ee of nraterial

nri.sstatcmcnts. Thc indcpcrrtleut audit involrrccl cxarnirtirrg. oll a tcst basis, cvidcncc sultllurtirtg

thc aurounls ancl disclosurcs in tlrc [lnanciaI statcn]e n1s; asscssing thc rccounting principlcs usod

and signilicant cstimrrtcs rrr;rclc by urrrrragr.,nlcnt; irncl cvalualing llrc ovc'rall llnalrcial statctltcnI
presentatiou. The inclepenclent auditor conch.ulecl. busetl upon tlte au<lit. that tltere was a

rcasolrable basis tirr rcnclcring au unnrortillcrt opirtion tltat tltc City's linatrcial statctncrtts for thc

llsc:al ycar cndctl Scptenrbcr'-10,202.1, nrc lirirlv prcscntccl in conlbrrrrity rvith GAAI', Thc

indcpendent audilor's rc1tort is prcscnlcd as thc first conrpol'lcnt ol thc [inancial scclion of this

repofi.

GAAP rccluilcs that rnanagt:mcnt providc a nan'alive in{roduction, ovcrvicw, and analysis to

accoulpany tlrc basic llnancial statcnrcnls in (hc lornt ol-it lvlattagctncnt l)iscussion and Analysis

112 W. Belknap r Jacksboro, Texas 76458 . 940-567-6321 ' Fax 940-567-251)0



(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement thc MD&A and should be read in

conjunction with it. Thc City's MD&A can be found immcdiatcly following the reportof the

independent auditor.

Profile of the Cify

The City of Jacksboro, the county seat of Jack County, was incorporated in 1875 and is a Type A
General Law municipal corporation under Texas law. The City occupies approximately 5.8

square miles and serves an estimatcd population of 4,232. As a municipal corporation, the City is

empowered by statc statutes to levy a tax on reat and business personal property located within
the corporate boundaries.

The City of Jacksboro operates under the Aldermanic form ol'govcrnmcnt where policymaking

and legislative authority are vested in a govcrning council consisting of the Mayor and five (5)

Aldermen (the "City Couucil"). The City Council is responsible for adopting the annual program

of services (budget), appointing committees, employing the City Attorney, City Manager, City
Secretary and Municipal Judgc, as well as enacting ordinanccs and cstablishing the tax rute,

The City Manager is responsible for appointing the various department directors, implementing
thc policies and ordinanccs adopted by the City Council, and managing thc day-to-day operations

of thc City. Thc City Manager also scrvcs as liaison to the Jacksboro Economic Development
Corporation. The Mayor and Council Menrbcrs are clected at-largc to serve two (2) year terms.

The basic financial statements of the City include all governmental activities, functions, and

organizations for which it is financially accounlable pursuant to and as defined by the

Governmental Accounling Standards Board (GASB). The Econonric Development Corporation
(EDC) is a component unit of the City. In addition to appointing the EDC Board of Directors, the

Council also approves the annual program of services for the EDC.

Services Provided

The City of Jacksboro is a full service city and provides the following: maintenance of sheets

and infrastructurc; parks and recreation and cultural activities; public salcty including emergency

management, fire and police; solid waste serviccs through a third party contract; and, water and

wastewater distribution and collectiotl systems.

Economic Conditions and Outlook

The City and County have l'ully rccovcrcd I'rom the EF-3 tomado in March 2022,andhave secn

an increase in new homes. As a result, we anticipate the ability to maintain a low ad valorem tax

rate into the future. Sales tax has increased slightly over the pa$ fiscal year, however we will
continue to be conservative with future outlook. As the county and school district continue to

grow, we anticipate some growth, both commercial and residential, wilhin the City over the nexl

few years. Waste Connections also anticipates construction on a new tandfill within the next

twenty-four months, which will increase rcvcnues for the City once they begin accepting debris.



An estimated 10,000 plus vehicles per day (Texas Dcpartmcnt ol'Transportation) pass through the

center of downtown. Jacksboro is equidistant to Fort Worth and Wichita Falls and is the transfer

point for two (2) U.S. Highways (281, 380) and four (4) State Highways (59. ll4, 148. 199).

Ease ofaccess is a contributing factor to anticipated new business growth.

Local Economy

The City currently enjoys a favorablc economic outlook as a number of new tourism related

busincsses havc madc plans to locate here. Fort Richardson Slate Park hosls an estimated

180.000 visitors annually and contributes approximately $900,000 to the local economy. The

City maintains two (2) lakes, Lake Jacksboro and Lost Creek Reservoir, which are primary

conbibutors to an expanding recreation base.

Tourism is the third largest induslry in the State of Texas and Jacksboro is the recipient of those

dollars based upon hunting and fishing and enhanced recreation facilities. That includes adult

and youth baseball facilities, a state grant funded playground (Texas Parks & Wildlife) and

growth in league play due to increased intcrest counlywidc.

The Jacksboro Independent School District recently approved a bond for the construction of a
fourth campus. The driving force behind this cxpansion is significant population growth in Jack

County. The growth will continue to improve the economic outlook for the City.

A leading North American oil and gas resource development has recently annouuced the

construction and expansion of their prcscncc in Jacksboro, which indicates a continued emphasis

on the importance of the oil and gas industry in our community. We anticipate this will lead to

additional housing and manufacturing.

The City also works closely with a local non-profil organization that contributes funds towards

"quality of life" projects that have also cnhanccd tourism opportunities. Sevcral ofthe projects

funded by this organization include enhancements to local parks and community sports facilities.

Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The City's accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified
accrual basis, with thc revcnucs bcing rccordcd when available and measwable and expenditurcs

being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities incured. Accourting

records for the City's utilities are rnaintained on thc accrual basis.

In developing and maintaining the Ciry's accounting system, consideration is given to the

adequacy of thc inlcrnal control struclure. lntemal accounting controls are designed to provide

reasonable, but not absolute. assurance rcgarding: (l ) the safeguarding ofassets against loss from

unauthorized use or disposition: and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing fiuancial

statements and maintaining accountabiliry of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance



recognizes rhat: (l) the cost of a control should not exceed thebencfits likclytobe derived;and
(2) the evaluation of costs and benelits rcquircs estimates and judgments by managenrent.

All intcrnal control cvaluations occur within the abovc framework. Wc bclieve that the City's
internal controls adequately sat'cguard assets and provide rcasonable assurance of proper

recording of financial lransactions.

The annual prognm of services serves as the founclation of the City's financial plaming and

conhol. State law requires the annual program of serviccs to be adopled by tbe City Council

before the start of the fiscalyear. The proposcd budgel must be submitted to the City Secretary no

later than thirty (30) days before the date set for a public hearing by the City Council to consider

adoption ofthe annual program ofservices.

Prior to adoption, the City Manager and city dcpartment directors preparc program expenditure

estimates for the remainder of the current fiscal year and for the upcoming fiscal year, and these

are compared to estimates of revenue for thc same periods. Adjustmcnts are ntade to the program

expenditure and expense estimates as necessary to ensure lhat the proposed program ofservices is

presented within total estimated inconte and available beginning fund resources.

The Ciry Manager is authorized to transfcr budgetcd amounts between line items within any fund.

However, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City
Council.

Budgetary contol has been established at the firnd lcvcl. Financial reports are produced showing

budget aud actual expenditures by linc itcm and are distributed monthly to the departrnental

managemenl and to others upon request.

hrdividual line items are reviewed and analyzed for budgetary compliance. Personnel

expenditures are monitorcd and controlled at the position level and capital expenditures are

monitored and controlled item by item. Revenue budgets are reviewed monthly.

A budget-to-actual comparison for the Ccncral Fund is provided later in this report.

Debt Manag€ment. The City funds its capital progran from a combinationof currcntrevenues

and capital debt. Arurual debt service requiremenB for general obligation debt are below the

statutory legal limit of $ I .50 per $ I 00 assessed property value.

Cash Managemcnt. The City utilizes it^s invcstmcnt policy in thc managcmcnt of all cash. The

City's investrnent policy embraces current state regulations on the investment of public funds and

authorizes the City to invest in cenificates of deposit from the bank depository direct obligations

of the United States Govcrnrnent, obligations ol an agency of the United States Government and

local government investment pools. State law requires public funds deposits be collateralized.

Collateral is monitored to ensure that the market value of the pledged securities equals or exceeds

the related deposit or investment balance. All collatcral shall be subjcct to verification by the

Finance Direclor and thc City's independent auditors.

Tax AppraisaUCollection Responsibilities. Under Texas law enacted in 1979, and subsequent

revisions ofthe State Property Tax Codc, the appraised value oftaxable property in Jacksboro is

IV



establislrccl by thc Jasl( C:orulty r\ltprrrisal District. 'l'hc ('it-v ol'Jacksboro ilnd otltcr taxing

julisclictions in .lack County ploviclc a llro'r'ill.a shirrc ol'thc l:trdgctccl r-.xpcnditulcs incurrcd by llrc

Appraisal Districl. baserl on inrliviclual 1s1,y. l'he .lack County Tax Assessor-Collector prtrl'icles

tax collcction scrl'iccs lirl tlrc City arrd otltel taxittg jttrisclictiotrs irr.lack Cottttty.

Risk IVIanngemonL A city govcrnnrcnt is constanlly cxposccl to risk ol'all kinds. inclrrding

clanrage to public propedy and liability resultiug fiont infur,v to petsotts and clanrage to their

propc!'ty. As a rncans of providing rcasonablc protcctiuu against thcsc risks. thc City participatt:s

in thc Tcxas klirnicipal Lcaguc llltcrgovcnllcnul Risk I']ool fbl ils propcrty loss and liability
coyeragc. As a nrcmbcr ol' thc progranr. thc Clity is providcd thc most cxtcn.sive protcclion

available to Texas cities in the areas of'comprehensive general liability, auto liability, losses to

nrunicipal buildings and c<;rrtcrrts, anr[ f'or lar,v cnfilrccnrent artcl public o{ficials'liability
coverage.

Arvards. In accor<lance with the City's linancial nanagernertt plan. tlte City ot'Jacksboro i.vas

arvarrlcd thc (iovcrnrncnt Filtancc Offrcers Association of thc [Jrritcd Statcs attd Cattatla (GFOA)

Ccrtificate ol Aclriocrrcnt in Financial Rcporting lbr its Annual Comprchcnsivc Financial

Rcport for thc fiscal yeirr cndcd Scptcnrbcr'-10, 2011.

The Ceniticatc ol AchicvculL:tlr is a prcsti-uious nntional aivarcl rccognizirrg cottlirrttratlce rvith thc

highcst stand:lrds lbr prcpariition ol'statc rnd local govcrnnlcnt lrnansial rcports. In order to bc

alvaldecl a Ccrtificatc ol'Aclrier,cnrcnt, a govcrnnrcnt ttnit tnttst publish an casily rcadablu and

efliciently organized annual comprehensive financial report. This report mu.st satisfy both

gcncrally acccptcd accor-uttitrg principlcs arrd applicahlc lcgaI rccltrircnrcnts.

A Cerlit-rcale ol Achicvcmcnt is r,alid t-or a pcriod ol' one ycar only. -[hc currcnt annual

comprehensive financial report \\/os prepaled rvitli the olr.iective of nreeting the Cer-tificate of
Achievement Prograru's rccluircnrcnts and is lrcing sutlnittcd to CFO.{ tr: dctcnttittc its cligibilily
{br thc certihcate.

Acknorvledgcments. The preparatiou ol this report on a tiltrely lrasis coLrlcl not be accornplished

without the cfficicnt antl dcdicatcd scn'ices ol tlrc ctitirc staff ofl the City. 'v\rc rvould like to
express our apprccialion to all staf I mcnrbcrs rvho assislcd and contributcd to its prcparation. We

would also like to thank thc Mlayor and City Council nrcnrbcrs lor thcir inlcrrst and support in

planning anrl conducting the linancial operatiorts of tire City' itr a responsible arld progressive

manner.

Rcspcctfu lly Submittcd,

Michael R. Smith
City Ivlanagcr

Hanna Atkinson
Financc Dircclor
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Organizational Chart - City of Jacksboro
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lndependent Auditor's Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Jacksboro, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Jacksboro, Texas (City) as of and for the year ended September 30,2024, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Jacksboro,
Texas as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City,
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

1



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.a

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary lnformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Texas
Municipal Retirement System, the Schedule of Contributions - Texas Municipal Retirement System, and the
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios - Texas Municipal Retirement System
identified as Required Supplementary lnformation in the table of contents be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

a

a

a

a

2



Su pplementary lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the combining and individual fund
statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists
we are required to describe it in our report.

ta6^r, (rtnt-.r^r,'?u;T 1 (%'-:wj r?c

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

Wichita Falls, Texas
March 31,2025
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the Cig of Jacksboro's (City) financial performance provides an overview
of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,2024. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter on pages ito v and the City's financialstatements, which begin on page 13.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded their liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources atthe close of the most recentfiscalyear by $12,604,311 (net position). Of
this amount $2,238,387 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City's obligations.

Overall Net Position decreased $43,506. This decrease in net position is attributed to increased
costs of ongoing operations.

At the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $1 ,818,443, a decrease of $315,835 in comparison with the prior year. The
decrease is primarily due to decreased revenues and more expenditures.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance in the general fund was
$1,376,904, or 30.19% percent of total general fund expenditures.

The City of Jacksboro's outstanding bonds payable decreased by $302,609 in the governmental
activities and increased by $2,599,609 in the business-type activities. The required debt service
payments were made on time. More information about the City's bonds payable may be found on
pages 40 to 46.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The City of Jacksboro's basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

1) Government-wide Financial Statements
2) Fund Financial Statements, and
3) Nofes to the Financial Statements

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

G ove rn me nt-wid e f i n a n ci a I state me nts

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
finances of the City of Jacksboro, Texas in a manner like a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all the City's assets, deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities, deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the four reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. The statement of activities presents information showing
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how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.9., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave).

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish the functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include legislative, general government, public safety,
streets, culture, and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include the water, sewer, and solid
waste utilities.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate component unit, Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation
(JEDC), for which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for the JEDC is presented as a
discrete component and is not included with the primary government. The JEDC is presented in a separate
column in government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements can be found
in the pages that follow this discussion.

F und financial stateme nts

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is usefulto compare the information presented for governmentalfunds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers
may better understand the longterm impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmentalfunds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains three major governmental funds and six nonmajor governmental funds. lnformation is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major general, debt service, and capital
projects funds. The nonmajor funds are summarized in the other governmental funds column. The nonmajor
funds combining schedules are included in the Combining and lndividual Statements and Schedules section
of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the general, capital projects, debt services, special
revenue, and utility funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to
demonstrate compliance with this budget. This comparison can be found in the Fund Statements section
of this report. The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Proprietary funds

The City of Jacksboro, Texas maintains a single enterprise fund, the water, sewer, and solid waste utility
fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business{ype activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses the enterprise fund to account for its water, sewer,
and solid waste operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the water and sewer
enterprise fund which is a major fund of the City.

Nofes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. More detailed information on long-term debt activity and
capital asset activity is presented in the relevant disclosures in the notes to the financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on the pages immediately following the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. ln the case of
the City, assets exceed liabilities by $12,604,31 1 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion (78.96%) of the City's net position reflects its net investment in capital assets. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following table is a comparative summary of net position as of September 30, 2024, and 2023:

Govemmental Activities Business-Wpe Activities Total

2024

s 2,465,s58

7,90t,451

70,367,Or9

254,O94

3,308,O7!

3,562,765

249,23s

L68,454

7,071,392

5 z,66z,Jo3

8,009,798

2023 2024 2023 2024

5 2,743,76t S 818,3s4 S s,209,329

5,681,054 5,673,871 14,582,505

9,424,815 6,492,225 t9,79I,834

2023

Current a nd other assets
Capital assets, net of

accumulated de preciati on
Total assets

Deferred outflow of resources

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities outstandi ng

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted net pos iti on

Debt service

Specific purposes
Unrestricted

S 3,480,6s7

13,583,669

I0,672,IOt r7,164,326

358,436 539,404 L76,304 275,759 534,740 814,563

196,530

3,s20,494

347,294 356,472 501,388

3,725,583 1,219,86t 7,033,654

4,072,877 7,516,333 7,635,042

553,002

4,740,355

3,7t7,O24 5,293,357

58,464 24,975 28,757 t2,740 87,227 37,715

5,609,745 5,705,520 4,338,490 5,OA7,937 9,948,235 10,793,457

j_1-!,826_ s 7,459,s06

249,235

t68,454
1,160,995 90,374 2,238,387

_$ll99l!!_ _$l.1zei4_ l_1?,604,911_

228,888
155,251

L,379,847

228,888

155,251

r,470,221

Total net position 5 r2,647,8L7

A portion of the City's net position (3.03%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used.
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Govern me ntal Activities

Governmental activities decreased net position by $364,680, and business-type activities increased net
position by $321 ,174,1or a total decrease in net position of $43,506. The key elements of this City-wide
decrease are shown in the following table:

Gwernmental Activities Business-type Activities
2024 202t 20?!. 202? 2024 2023

Revenues:
Program revenues

Charges forservices
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues
Prope rty ta xes

Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Hotel / Motel taxes
Othe r taxes
lnterest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenses:

Legislative
General government
Publicsafety
Stre ets

Cu ltu re a nd re creati on

lnterest and fiscal charges
Water and sewer utilities

Total expenses

S 3,393,s86 S 3,s70,166

(43,506) 926,234

Total

$ 259,984

L63,286

(364,680)

7,469,506

208,604

88,294

327,388

5 3,361,s62

647,426

S 3,663,s70

163,286 88,294

974,8L4

s

1,542,326 1,510,046 7,542,326 1,510,046

r,29L,762 r,$6,872 r,29t,762 1,436,872

359,1r.4 343,738 359,114 343,738

15,400 22,317 15,400 22,3t7

7,s05 L3,642 7,505 13,642

73,288 97,522 70,437 55,019 r43,7L9 L52,54r

308,501 286,311 308,501 286,311

4,031,166 4,334,734 3,464,077 4,064,007 7,495,!83 8,398,74L

36,040 57,228 35,040 57,228

r,223,084 r,r39,244 L,223,084 t,L39,244
1,902p20 r,927,994 t,902,820 L,927,994

668,908 6L2,855 658,908 512,855

660,630 642,289 660,630 642,289

58,973 72,332 58,973 72,332

4,5s0,4s5 4,4sL,942 2,988,234 3,020,565 7,538,689 7,472,507

(s19,289) lLrT,2081 475,783 r,043,442

Ls4,609 149,069 (1s4,609) (149,069)
Change in net position before transfers
Net transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning as originallystated
Pri or Period Adjustme nt
Net position - beginning, restated
Net position - ending

31,861 32t,L74 894,373 (43,506)

7,437,645 5,t78,31r 4,380,447 t2,647,817

926,234

11,818,092
(96,s09)(96,s09)

7,469,506 7,437,645 5,r783Lr 4,283,938 12,647,817

j_1,t ,826_ _5 ?,46e,s06_ _9_119948s_ _$l1z!,i11_ _5 tz,6uitt_ j_12144326_

ln total, the City's revenues decreased by 10.76%, to $7,495,183, mainly due to decreased sales taxes and
capital grants. Sales tax revenues fluctuate with changes in economic activity. Additional expenditures in
the General Fund were for capital outlay and debt services for operating leases. The total cost of all
programs and services increased by 0.89%, to $7,538,689.
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Revenues by source - governmental activities

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and charges for services provide 86% of the revenues for the
governmentalactivities. The chart below provides a graphic representation of the City's revenues by source:

Revenues by Source - GovernmentalActivities

Contributions/
grants lnterest

Miscellaneous
goh Property taxes

380h

Charges for
services

7o/o

Other taxes
0%

Franchise taxes
9%

Sales taxes
320h

Expenses and program revenues - governmental activities

Public safety, general government, and culture and recreation make up 83.21% of the expenses for
governmental activities. The chart below provides a graphic representation of the City's governmental
expenses and related revenues by source.
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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Expenses and program revenues - busrness-type activities

The City's business-type activities include water, sewer, and solid waste utilities. The City's water and
sewer utilities make up 69.21% of operating expenses, and solid waste makes up the remaining 30.79Yo.

I

General
government

Public
safety

Revenues by source - busrness-type activities

Water, sewer, and solid waste charges for services account for 96.75% of the revenue for businesstype
activities. The following chart provides a breakdown of all business-type revenues by source.

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

lnterest
1.72o/o



The chart below provides a graphic representation of the City's business-type operating expenses and any
related revenues by source.

Expenses - Business-type Activities

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000

$0
Water and sewer utilities Solid waste

Financial Analysis of the Gity's Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements.
Unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $1,818,443, a decrease of $315,835 in comparison with the prior year.75.72% of this total amount,
$1,376,904, constitutes unassigned fund balance in the general fund, which is available for spending at the
City's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate it is required to be set aside for
specific purposes as follows: 1) debt service $230,752,2) other governmental funds $165,177 ,3) projects
$3,277.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned
fund balance of the generalfund was $1,376,904. As a measure of the generalfund's liquidity, it may be
usefulto compare unassigned fund balance to total generalfund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance
represents 30.2o/o of totalgeneralfund expenditures. The fund balance of the generalfund decreased by
$345,317 during the current fiscal year.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $230,752, all of which is restricted for the payment of debt
service. Debt service payments were made when due. The net increase in fund balance during the current
year in the debt service fund was $19,129.
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The Nonmajor Hotel Motel Tax Fund shows a $5,603 decrease in fund balance due to a $10,463 capital
outlay for Fort Richardson improvements. The remaining Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds show
increases in fund balances.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide statements,
but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the utility fund at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to $ 1 ,160,995. Net
position increased $321,174 from the prior year. Factors regarding the finances were addressed in the
discussion of the City's business{ype activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenues were $176,190 less than the City's budgeted projections, and expenditures were more than the
final budget by $736,569. The negative revenue variance was primarily due to decreased sales taxes. The
expenditure variance is due to increased capital outlay for downtown revitalization and the GASB 87
accounting for operating leases.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

CapitalAssefs

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September
30, 2024, amounts to $14,582,505 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings and improvements, the Lost Creek Dam and Reservoir, streets, machinery and
equipment, water and sewer systems, and construction in progress.

crw oF JAcKsBoRo cAPtTAr AsSETs (NET OF DEPRECTATIONI

Gdernmental Activities Activities Total

2024 2023 2024 2022 2024 2022

La nd

Construction in progress

Buildi ngs and improvements

Lost Creek Dam & Reseruoir

Streets

Water and sewer system

SBITA Assets

Machineryand equipment

Right-to-use leased machineryand equipment

Total

s 295,178 s 295,178 s
923,0L2

5,340,538

368,019

4,878,306

388,955

38,591

295,L78 s

923,0L2

7,709,948

3,348,724

7,277,290

5,340,538

779,348

7,082,166

426,301

295,178

368,019

7,874,77L

3,516,160

7,374,722

4,874306

7,204,07r

L72,502

s5

L,709,948

3,348,724

1,277,290

779,348

746,250

344,773

L,874,

3,516,

r,374,

77L

160

722

815,056

L33,971

335,916

81,588

s 7,901,4s1 5 8,009,798 s s s,673,87r s 14,s82,s0s s 13,683,669
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Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note 6. CAPITAL ASSETS of this report.

Long-term Liabilities

At the end of the 2024 fiscal year, the City had total long-term liabilities of $5,61 8,965.

CIW OF JACKSBORO OUTSTANDING IONG TERM LIABITITIES

Governmental Activities Activities Total

2023 fl 2023 2024 2021 2024 2023

Bonds Payable, including premiums $ S 3,139,s87 S s+s,aeg 5 s

Notes paya ble

Right-to-use lease liabilities

SBITA Liabilities

Compensated absences

1,654,895

LzL,4t8

349,360

165,032

68,101

L,690,7t8

475,076

t3a,484

82,705

86,233

33,338

40,065

4,794,483

tzt,4t8
435,593

L66,032

101,439

2,236,587

475,076

178,549

738,4t255,707

Tota I $ 2,3s9,807 S 2,386,983 S 3,2s9,1s8 S 641,641 S s,618,96s 5 3,028,624

ln the Businesstype Activities, the City issued $2,740,000 Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue
Certificates of Obligation for sewer utility improvements.

Additional information on the City's longterm debt can be found in note 8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Program of Services (Budget) and Rates

o The 2024 appraised net taxable value used for the FY 2024-25 budget preparation was
$244,823,100, which is a 12,160/o increase from the 2023 adjusted net taxable value of
$218,286,350.

o For the 2024-25 budget year, the City adopted a tax rate of $0.695901 per one hundred dollars of
assessed valuation.

o The FY 2024-25 adopted general operating fund budget decreases expenditures by 8.9%
compared to the final FY 2023-24 actual amount, from $4,560,866 actual in FY 2023-24 to a
budgeted $4,155,088 in FY 2024-25.

These indicators were considered when adopting the FY 2024-25 generalfund budget. Beginning actual
unassigned fund balance available for appropriation in the FY 2024-25 general fund budget is $1 ,376,904.
ln total, the City's adopted FY 2024-24 generalfund budget is projected to increase the ending fund balance
by $a9,159

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an
interest in the City of Jacksboro's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City Secretary, 112 West Belknap,
Jacksboro, Texas, 76458.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Primary Government
Governmental

Activities

99,454
236,303

74,269
313,722

11,620
27,196

464,407
42,333

354,082

295,178

5,443,564
2,879,1 83
8,355,568

2,720,673
227,788
460,324
220,504

(12,701,3s1)
10,367,019

351,996
6,440

-=Eeasa-

211,545
29,797
12,752

484,588
1,875,219

850,836
97,428

3,562,1 65

43,1 93
15,271
58,464

5,609,745

446
2,831

249,235
90,088

o oro

21,087
25,795
18,278

1,O77 ,392
$ 7,104,826

Business-type
Activities

449,252

(464,407)

2,1 89,553

923,0't2

14,145,735
1,539,486

45,1 99
133,003

(1 0,1 05,381 )
9,424,815

1 73,1 36
3,1 68

257,342
13,036
6,646

70,270

5,443,564
2,879,183
8,355,568

14,145,735
4,260,1 59

272,987
593,327
220,504

(22,806,712)
19,791,834

Total

99,454
236,303
74,269

313,722
449,252

11,620
27,196

42,333

2,543,635

255,178
923,012

525,132
9,608

468,887
42,833
19,398
70,270

620,489
4,998,476
1,269,339

EXHIBIT A-1

Component

$ 1,522,856

78,768

826

1.000
1 ,132.271

10,800

20,1 05
367

20,472

16,638
963

1.141

87,553
136,365
48,593

2,456,037-f2760p-65-

Unit

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net):

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Municipal court fines
Customers
lntergovernmental
Other

lnternal balances
Prepaid expenses
Property held for sale
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Streets
Lost Creek Dam and Reservoir
Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Right-to-use leased machinery and equipment
SBITA assets
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension plan related
OPEB plan related

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Wages payable

Accrued interest payable

Customer deposits
Long{erm liabilities:

Portion due or payable within one year
Portion due or payable after one year
Net pension liability (payable after one year)
Total OPEB liability (payable after one year)

Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources
Pension plan related
OPEB plan related

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:

Park projects

Landfill
Debt service
Tourism
Court technology
Court security
School safety
Grants

Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 842,182 $ 569,363 $ 1,41 1,545

(6,772)
2,739,749

176,304 534,740

1 35,901
3,123,257

41 8,503
47,922

4,072,877

21,246
7,511

28,757

4,338,490

1 ,1 60,995
Tj/4gg-;ffi-

446
2,831

249,235
90,088

o oto
21,O87
25,795
18,278

2,238,387
-$-1zs-o+-3iT-

145,350 5,564

--7FFr........ --7FFiEi7-

64,439 2,467
22,782
87,221 3,339

9,948,23s 4,028

872

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Functions/Programs
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
Legislative
General government
Public safety
Streets
Culture and recreation
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water, sewer, and solid waste utilities

Total primary government

Component unit:
Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation

General revenues and transfers:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Property taxes, levied for debt service
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Hotel/Motel taxes
Other taxes
lnterest
Miscellaneous

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Expenses

$ 36,040
1,223,084
't,902,820

668,908
660,630

58,973
4,550,455

2, 988.234

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

$ $
45,731

199,974

24,279

31,388
108,470

23,428

269,984 163,286

3,393,586

$ 7,s38,689 $ 3,663,570 $ 163,286

$ 343,173 $ 1,062 $

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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EXHIBIT A-2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business{ype
Activities Total

Component
Unit

$$ (36,040)
(1,145,e65)
(1,594,376)

(668,908)
(612,e23)

(58,e73)

(36,040)
(1,145,e65)
(1,594,376)

(668,e08)
(612,923)

(58,973)

$ $

(4,117,185) (4,117,185)

405,352 405,352

(4,117,18s) 405,352 (3,711,833)

(342,111)

1 ,1 95,329
346,997

1,291,762
359,1 14

15,400
7,505

73,288
308,501
154,609

70,431

(154,609)

1,195,329
346,997

1,291,762
359,1 14

15,400
7,505

143,719
308,501

430,587

87,09'l
5,154

3,752,505 (84,1 78) 3,668,327 522,832

(364,680)

7,469,506

321,174

5,178,31 1

(43,506)

12,647,817

180,721

2,279,344

$ 7,104,826 $ 5,499,485 $ 12,604,311 $ 2,460,065
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EXHIBIT A.3

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net):

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Municipal court fines
lntergovernmental
Other

Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Restricted cash
Total assets

Liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Wages payable

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenues

Fund balances:
Nonspendable - prepaids

Restricted
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

CITY OF JAGKSBORO, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER30,2024

General

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund
Nonmajor

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 842,182 $

79,324
236,303

74,269
313,722

24,451
435,000
42,333

3,277
$ 2,050,861

$ $ 842,182

20,130

11,620
2,745

29,407

199,993 150,812TffiW

99,454
236,303

74,269
313,722

11,620
27,196

464,407
42,333

354 082

$ 211,545$ 211,545
29,797

$ $

241,342

387,005 18,778

42,333
3,277

1,376,904

See accompanying nofes fo the basic financialsfafernenfs.
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29 797
241 342

405,783

230,752 165,177

1,422,514 230,752 165,177 1,818,443

$ 2,050,861 $ 249,530 $ 165,177 $ 2,465,568

42,333
399,206

1,376,904



Total fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit A-3)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A-1)
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore not
reported in the funds. Capital assets at year-end consist of:

$ 20,602,782
12 701 331

Property taxes receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and
therefore are deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

Municipal court fees receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and

therefore are deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Gross capital assets
Related accumulated depreciation

Bonds payable
Bond premiums
Notes payable
Right-to-use lease liabilities
SBITA liabilities
Compensated absences

lnterest payable on long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and

therefore not reported as liabilities in the funds. Accrued interest at year-end was:

The City's net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows related to its
participation in the Texas Municipal Retirement System do not meet criteria to be

reported in the governmental funds financial statements. These items consist of:

Deferred outflows of resources - pension plan related
Deferred inflows of resources - pension plan related
Net pension liability

The City's total OPEB (other post-employment benefit) liability and related deferred
outflows and inflows related to the Supplemental Death Benefit Fund (SDBF) from
the Texas Municipal Retirement System do not meet criteria to be reported in the
governmental funds financial statements. These items consist of:

Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related
TotalOPEB liability

Total net position - governmental activities (Exhibit A-1)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial sfafemenfs.
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CITY OF JAGKSBORO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1,639,906
14,990

121,418
349,360
166,032
68,101

351,996
(43,1e3)

(850,836)

6,440
(15,271)
(97,428\

EXHIBIT A.4

$ 1,818,443

7 ,901,451

92,061

313,722

(2,35e,807)

(12,752)

(542,033)

(106,25e)

$ 7,104,826



EXHIBIT A-5

Revenues

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Franchise fees

Hotel/Motel taxes

Other taxes

Charges for services

Licenses, permits, and fees

Recreation fees

Court fines and fees

Rentals

Contributions

lntergovernmental

lnterest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Legislative

General government

Public safety

Streets

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal

lnterest charges

Paying agent fees

Total expenditures

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

General

Fund

$ 1 ,1 79,481

1,291,762

359,1 14

Debt

Service

Fund

$ 343,094 $

14,801

Nonmajor

Funds

15,400

10,203

18,868

5,112

Total

Governmental
Funds

$ 1.522,575

1,291,762

359,1 14

15,4d0

7,505

2,634
29,289

24,279

152,799

13,808

90,760

72,526

73,288

277,186

7,505

2,634

29,289

24,279

142,596

13,808

90,760

53,658

53,375

277,186

3,525,447 357,895 49,583 3,932,925

36,040

1,127,821

1,578,360

496,804

406,174

684,965

207,085

23,617

13,773

14,994

10,463

36,040

1,141,594

1,593,354

496,804

406,174

695,428

302,609

39,941

825

509,694

63,558

825

4,560,866 343,375 39,230 4,943,471

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

lssuance of right-to-use lease liabilities

lssuance of SBITA liabilities

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

(1,035,419) 14,s20 10 353 (1,010,546)

32,180

287,4't8
220,504

150,000

690,1 02

4,609

4,609

32,180

287,418

220,504

154,609

694,711

(345,317)

1,767,831

$ 1,422,514

19,'129 '10,353 (315,835)

2,134,278211,623 154,824

$ 230,752 $ 165,177

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Fund balances - ending $ 1,818,443



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

$ 695,427
802,909

EXHIBIT A.6

$ (315,835)

(107,482)

(865)

66,926

517,281

3,213

(5,390)

(507,922)

14,604

(28,162)

(1,048)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit A-5)

Amounts reported lor governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. The net difference between the two is as follows:

Capital outlay during the year
Depreciation expense for the year

The net book value of the capital assets disposed of during the year are not reported in the
fund financial statements. However, in the Statement of Activities, the net book value of the
capital assets disposed of during the year are recorded and were:

Because certain receivables will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal year
ends, they are not considered 'available'revenues and are deferred in the governmental funds
The deferred inflow portions changed by these amounts this year:

Property taxes
Municipal court fees

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long{erm liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Principal payments
during the year were:

Bonds payable
Notes payable
Right-to-use lease liabilities
SBITA liabilities

Amortization of the bond premiums during the year was:

Accrued interest payable from the beginning of the year to the end of the year changed by:

The City issued additional debt during the year. The debt is reported as an other source in the
governmental funds; however, is reported as liabilities in the governmental activities. The amount
of debt issued during the year was:

Compensated absences are reported as the amount is earned in the Statement of Activities,
but as paid in the governmental funds. During the year, the liability changed by:

The City participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. Contributions
to the plan are expenditures at the fund level when payments are due. At the government-wide
level, pension expenses are recognized on an actuarial basis. Payments were less than the
actuarial expense in the current year.

The City participates in a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. Contributions to the plan

are expenditures at the fund level when payments are due. At the governmenlwide level,
OPEB expenses are recognized on an actuarial basis. Payments were less than the
actuarial expense in the current year.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A-2)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial sfafernents.
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19,751
47,175

302,609
83,658
76,542
54,472

_g (364,99q_



EXHIBIT A.7

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Assets
Current assels:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Long-term assets:
Capital assets:

Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Right-to-use lease assets
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension plan related
OPEB plan related

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Wages payable
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits
Compensated absences, current portion
Current maturities of long-term obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term obligations, less current maturities
Compensated absences, net of current portion
Net pension liability
TotalOPEB liability

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension plan related
OPEB plan related

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Utilitv Fund

$ 569,363
449,252

2,189,553
3,208,168

14,145,735
1,539,486

45,1 99
133,003
923,012

(1 0,1 05,381 )
6,681,054

9,889,222

173,136
3,1 68

176,304

257,342
13,036

464,407
6,646

70,270
15,002

120,899
947,602

3,',\04,921
18,336

418,503
47,922

--:-585;682-
4,537,284

21,246
511

28,757

4,338,490
1,160,995

7

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$ 5,499,485



Operating revenues:
Water revenues
Sewer revenues
Solid waste
Penalties
Tap fees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and maintenance
Contractual services
Sanitation contractual services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Capital contributions
lnterest income
lnterest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome before transfers

Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

GITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30,2024

EXHIBIT A.8

Utility Fund

$ 1,466,915
887,425
914,149
47,995
19,089
5,453

3,341,026

976,337
419,496
163,573
901,740
467,534

2.928.680

412,346

52,560
70,431

(59.554)

63,437

475,783

(154,60e)

321,174

5, 178.311

$ s,+99,485

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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EXHIBIT A.9

Cash flows from operating activities:
Received from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and professional contractors for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
lssuance of captial debt
Principal paid on capital debt
lnterest paid on capital debt
Capital contributions

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lnterest on investments

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating lncome to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation
(lncrease) decrease in current assets and deferred outflows of resources:

Accounts receivable
Deferred outflows of resources

lncrease (decrease) in current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
,Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Wages payable

Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
TotalOPEB liability
Deferred inflows of resources

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Statement of Net Position
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

See accompanying notes to the basic financial sfafements.

22

Utility Fund

$ 3,336,207
(ee6,670)

(1,504,332)
835,205

(154,609)
(154,60e)

(1,474,718)
2,814,766
(174,880)

(54,807)
52,560

1,162,921

70,431

1,913,948

844,968
$- 2758,9i 6

$ 412,346

467,535

(11,459)
98,855

(1e,524)
(1,041)
6,640

(22,36e)
(116,012)

4,217
16,017

$ 569,363
189 553



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER30,2024

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Jacksboro, Texas (City) conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to state and local
governments. GAAP for local governments includes those principles prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which includes all statements and interpretations of the National
Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) unless modified by the GASB, and those principles
prescribed by the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of
State and Local Governmental Units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies and
practices used by the City.

A. Reportinq Entitv

The City is incorporated as a general law municipal corporation under the laws of the State of
Texas. The City operates under a Mayor / Alderman form of government and provides the following
services: legislative, general administrative services, public safety (police and fire), streets, and

culture and recreation. Other services include water, sewer, and solid waste operations. The City,

for financial purposes, includes all of the funds relevant to the operations of the City of Jacksboro,
Texas.

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component unit, an entity for which
the City is considered to be financially accountable. The component unit of the City includes the
separately administered organization that is controlled by or dependent on the City. Control or
dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding, and

appointment of the respective governing board. The discretely presented component unit is

reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is
legally separate from the City.

The Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation (JEDC) is a discretely-presented component
unit which serves all of the citizens of the City and is governed by a board of directors that are
appointed by and serve at the discretion of the City Council. The City Council has ultimate authority
over the actions of the JEDC. The JEDC is reported as a governmental entity and its accounts are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Separate audited financial statements are not
issued for the JEDC; however, complete financial statements for the JEDC may be obtained from
the City's Finance Officer at112 West Belknap, Jacksboro, Texas.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net
position and the statement of activities) report information on activities of the primary government
and its component unit.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FtNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2024

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONT',D.)

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a functional category (public works, public transportation, etc.) or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting operational requirements of a particular function or
segment, and 3) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund-based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for governmental and enterprise) for the
determination of major funds. The major governmental funds are the General Fund and the Debt
Service Fund. The major enterprise fund is the Utility Fund.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in
aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund
financial statements is on the major individual funds. Each presentation provides valuable
information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accountinq and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year in which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Government fund-level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise fees, and hotel/motel taxes associated with the current fiscal
period are susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER30,2024

1. SUMMARY OF STGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT',D.)

The City reports the following major governmentalfunds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. This fund is used to account for all
financial resources of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the annual debt service requirements of the City

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Utility Fund is used to account for the water, wastewater, and sanitation services provided
by the City.

ln addition, the City reports the following nonmajor fund types

The Special Revenue Funds account for proceeds for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for a specified purpose. The nonmajor governmental funds are as
follows:

Hotel/motelfund is supported by hotel/moteltaxes and are used to promote tourism.

Court technology fund is supported by court fines and are used for technology purchases.

Court security, school safety, and crossing guard funds are supported by court fines and
used for security and safety purposes.

Grant Fund is supported by intergovernmental grants and used for the purpose specified in
the grant contract.

GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of account groups but provides for these
records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the Governmental Activities column
in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City's Utility Fund are charges to customers for services. Operating
expenses for the Utility Fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

a
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER30,2024

1. SUMMARY OF STGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT',D.)

D. Budqet Policies

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and
Utility Funds. The annual budgets for the General, Debt Service, and Special Revenue Funds are
adopted on a modified accrual basis. The budget for the Utility Fund is adopted under a basis
consistent with GAAP, except that amortization and depreciation are not considered (working
capital basis).

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budget reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding
fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them. A meeting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed
budget. At least ten days public notice of the meeting must have been given. Prior to the start
of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the City
Council.

2. Once a budget is approved, it can only be amended by approval of a majority of the members
of the City Council. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are
reflected in the official minutes of the City Council and are not made after fiscal year end. All
budget appropriations lapse at year end.

E. Assets. Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

1. Cash, lnvestments, and Temporary Deposits

The City's cash, investments, and temporary deposits are pooled for investment. For purposes
of the statement of cash flows, the City considers cash on hand, demand deposits, and
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the prior
year. Taxes are levied on October 1, and do not begin to accrue interest until February 1. The
City is permitted by the Municipal Finance Law of the State of Texas to levy taxes (exclusive of
those amounts levied to service long-term debt) up to $2.25 per $100 of assessed valuation.
The City's tax rate for the current year was $.538720 per $100 in assessed valuation.
Additionally, the City levied a tax for Debt Service of $.157181 per $100 in assessed valuation;
therefore, the total tax rate was $.695901 per $100 in assessed valuation.

An allowance for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are
based upon historical experience in collecting taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are
periodically reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property
taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER30,2024

1. SUMMARY OF SiGNiFiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT',D.)

3. lnventories and Prepaid ltems

The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of
accounting for inventory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items.

4. Property Held for Sale

Property held for sale consists of land and buildings that were purchased or donated to be sold
to third parties. Those assets are carried at the lower of cost or fair market value.

5. CapitalAssets

Capital assets which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.9. roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
at historicalcost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets
and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition
value at the time received.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives

Buildings and improvements
Streets
Machinery, eq uipment, furniture, and fixtures
Right-to-use leased machinery and equipment

20-50 years
20-50 years

5-15 years
1-5 years

6. Right-to-Use Leases

The County is a lessee for two noncancellable leases for equipment. The County recognizes
lease liabilities, reported with long-term debt, and right-to-use lease assets (lease assets),
reported with other capital assets, in the government-wide financial statements. The County
recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individualvalue of $5,000 or more.

At the commencement of a lease, the County initially measures the lease liability at the present
value of payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability
is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially
measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or
before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease
asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or its useful life.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the County determines (1) the
discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term,
and (3) lease payments.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER30,2024

The County uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest
rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the County generally uses its estimated incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed
payments and any purchase option price that the County is reasonably certain to exercise, and
any other payments that are reasonably certain of being required based on an assessment of
all relevant factors.

The County monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its
leases and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are
expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability.

7. Subscription-Based lnformation Technology Agreements (SBlTAs)

The County has three noncancellable contracts with SBITA vendors for the right-to-use
information technology (lT) software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the
underlying lT assets). The County recognizes subscription liabilities, reported with long-term
debt, and right-to-use subscription assets (intangible assets), reported with other capital assets,
in the government-wide financial statements. The County recognizes subscription liabilities with
an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more.

At the commencement of a SBITA, the County initially measures the subscription liability at the
present value of payments expected to be made during the subscription term. Subsequently,
the subscription liability is reduced by the principal portion of SBITA payments made. The
subscription asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the subscription liability, adjusted
for SBITA payments made at or before the SBITA commencement date, plus certain initial
implementation costs. Subsequently the subscription asset is amortized on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the subscription term or the useful life of the underlying lT assets.

Key estimates and judgments related to SBITAs include how the County determines (1) the
discount rate it uses to discount the expected subscription payments to present value, (2)
subscription term, and (3) subscription payments.

The County uses the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor as the discount rate. When
the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor is not provided, the County generally uses its
estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for SBlTAs.

The subscription term includes the noncancellable period of the SBITA.

Subscription payments included in the measurement of the subscription liability is composed of
fixed payments and any other payments that are reasonably certain of being required based on
an assessment of all relevant factors.

The County monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its
SBITAs and will remeasure the subscription asset and liability if certain changes occur that are
expected to significantly affect the amount of the subscription liability.
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8. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Certain amounts
related to the City's participation in pension plans (see Note 9) are reported in this category.

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflow of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has three types of items that qualify for
reporting in this category. Property taxes receivable ($99,061) and municipal court fines
receivable ($313,722) are unavailable and therefore cannot be recognized as revenue in the
governmental funds until they are received. There are also certain items related to the City's
participation in pension and OPEB plans (see Notes 9 and 11) that are reported in this
category.

9. Compensated Absences

Employees in permanent positions are eligible for vacation benefits, either as time off with pay
or as terminal in cases of separation from City employment. Upon leaving the employment of
the City, employees will be paid for unused vacation days which they have accrued.

Permanent employees accumulate sick leave indefinitely. However, no terminal pay is

authorized for unused sick leave for terminating employees.

10. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other obligations for general government purposes are recorded in the
government-wide statement of net position. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by
the Utility Fund are reported as liabilities in that fund.

For the government-wide and Utility Fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method in the
government-wide financial statements. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. lssuance costs are expended when incurred. ln the governmental fund-
level financial statements, bond proceeds are reported as another financing source. Bond
premiums and discounts in governmental funds are also recognized currently as other financing
sources or uses. lssuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
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11. Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to
remain intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties,
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At September 30, 2024, the restricted fund
balances were as follows:

Purpose
Landfi ll capital projects
Park projects
Debt service
Tourism
Court technology
Court security
Schoolsafety
Grants

General
Fund

$2,831
446

Debt
Service

Fund

$

230,752

Other
Governmental

Funds
$

90,088
9,929

21,087
25,795
18.278

Totals
$ z,est

446
230,752

90,088
9,929

21,087
25,795
18.278

$-zaTotals $BIJ_A $rS5J7Z $399206

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose
because of a formal action by the City Council. Committed amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type
of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with
appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through
adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted
balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the City intends to use for a specific
purpose, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. lntent may
be stipulated by the governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board
delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special
revenue, capital projects, or debt service fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the
nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the General Fund

convey that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than
the general purposes of the City itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be
spent for any purpose. Only the General Fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance.
Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of
overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or
assigned.
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When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first.

When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances
are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

12. Transactions Between Funds

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual
balances between governmental activities and business{ype activities are reported in the
government-wide statements as "internal balances". Nonrecurring or non-routine transfers of
equity between funds are accounted for as transfers.

13. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health
benefits; and other claims of various natures. The City participates in the Texas Municipal
League lntergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common
risk management and insurance program. The agreement for the formation of TML provides
that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through
commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category
of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. There were no significant reductions in

commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years.

14. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformi$ with GAAP requires the use of
management's estimates. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

15. Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions
to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported to TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period
that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due.
Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at fair value.
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16. Other Post-Employment Benefits

The fiduciary net position of the TMRS Supplemental Death Benefit Fund (SDBF) has been
determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other post-employment benefits and
OPEB expense. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. There are no investments as this is a pay-as-you-go-plan and all cash is held
in a cash account.

2. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note DisclosLrres", a
violation of finance-related legal and contractual provisions is reported below, along with the action
taken to address the violation:

For the year ended September 30,2024, the City over expended the General Fund's budget in
five functional areas and in total (see Exhibit B-1). The City will be more diligent in monitoring
its actual expenditures compared to the City's adopted budget in future years.

B. Deficit Fund Balance or Net Position of lndividual Funds

As of September 30, 2024, the City did not have any individual funds with deficit fund balances

3. DEPOS'IS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deposits

All of the City's demand and time depository accounts are held in local banking institutions. At
September 30,2024, the carrying amount of the City's deposits (cash and interest-bearing savings
accounts included in temporary investments) was $3,955,180 and the bank balance was
$3,994,719. The City's cash deposits at September 30,2024, and during the year ended
September 30,2024, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the
City's agent bank in the City's name.

All of the JEDC's demand and time depository accounts are held in local banking institutions. At
September 30, 2024, the carrying amount of the Corporation's deposits (cash, certificates of
deposit, and interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $1 ,522,856
and the bank balance was $1,597,653. The Corporation's cash deposits at September 30, 2024,
and during the year ended September 30,2024, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance.

a
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B. lnvestments

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256,The Public Funds lnvestment Act (Act) to
adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily
emphasize safety of principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield, maturity and
the quality and capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized
investments in which the investing entity's funds may be invested; and the maximum allowable
stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted
as a part of the audit of the financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices,
management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local
policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with
certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of
Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings
accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment
pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) common trust funds.

lnvestments of the City and JEDC at September 30,2024 are as follows and are reported as cash
and cash equivalents on Exhibit A-1:

Tvpes of lnvestments
Primary Government:

TexSTAR

JEDC:
LOGIC

Fair Value/
Carrying
Amount Cost

$ 487,494$ 487,494

1.559,225 1.559,225

Average
Credit Quality

Ratinqs

AM-p

Weighted
Average Days

to Maturitv

25

46A,/M-m

Total investments v-046J19 $2t046219

The City categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. lnvestments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per
share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below.
ln instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the valuation. The City's assessment of the significance of particular inputs to
these fair value measurements requires judgement and considers factors specific to each asset or
liability.
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Public Funds lnvestment Pools
Public funds investment pools in Texas (Pools) are established under the authority of the lnterlocal
Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of
the Act, Chapter 2256 ol the Texas Government Code. ln addition to other provisions of the Act
designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory
board composed of participants in the pool and other persons who do not have a business
relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous rating of no
lower than AAA or A,/M-m or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating
service; and 3) maintain the market value of its underlying investment portfolio within one half of
one percent of the value of its shares. The City participates in the following public funds investment
pools:

TexSTAR - Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR) is administered by J.P.
Morgan lnvestment Management lnc. and First Southwest, a division of Hilltop Securities, lnc.
J.P. Morgan lnvestment Management, lnc. provides investment management services and First
Southwest provides participant and marketing services for TexSTAR. TexSTAR's governing
body is a five-member board of directors comprised of three government officials and one
member employed by each co-administrator or an affiliate. TexSTAR's investments are only
those authorized by the Act governing pools for local governments. The balances are valued at
net asset value per uniUshare.

Each participating government owns an undivided beneficial interest in the assets of the pool
represented by units. Participants may terminate their participation in TexSTAR at any time by
redeeming their units. TexSTAR is not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) as an investment company.

LOGIC - Local Government lnvestment Cooperative (LOGIC) is administered by J.P. Morgan
lnvestment Management lnc. and First Southwest, a division of Hilltop Securities, lnc. J.P.
Morgan lnvestment Management, lnc. provides investment management services and First
Southwest provides participant and marketing services for LOGIC. LOGIC's governing body is

a five-member board of directors comprised of three government officials and two other
persons with expertise in public finance. LOGIC's investments are only those authorized by the
Texas Public Funds lnvestment Act governing pools for local governments. LOGIC presently
offers two investment pools, each of which is separately managed and has a different
investment objective. The balances are valued at net asset value per uniVshare.

Each participating government owns an undivided beneficial interest in the assets of the pool
represented by units. Participants may terminate their participation in LOGIC at any time by
redeeming their units. LOGIC is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) as an investment company.
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C. Analvsis of Specific Deposit and lnvestment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the
following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to
give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

2. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance
and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's
trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

lnvestment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not
registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the
counterpar$'s trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

3. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single
issuer. At year end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

4. lnterest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. At year end, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

5. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year
end, the City was not exposed to foreign currency risk.
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D. lnvestment Accountinq Policv

The City's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating
interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an
investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other
factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal
contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which
have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means
that the investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts.

4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30,2024, including the allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General

Fund

$ 88,138

236,303

74,269

627,444

$22,366 $

24.451

1,050,605 22,366

( 322.536) ( 2.236)

Debt Other

Service Gov.

Fund Funds

11,620

2.745

14,365

Totals JEDC - Totals

Primary Component Reporting

Government Unit Entitv

Utility

Fund

Receivables:

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Franchise fees

Municipal court fines

Utility services

lntergovernmental

Other

Gross receivables

Less: Allowance for

uncollec{ible accounts

'-

+gz,oos

--------:-497,665

( 48.413) ( 373.18s)

$ 1 10,504

236,303

74,269

627,444

497,665

11,620

27.196

1,585,001

$ 110,s04

315,071

74,269

627,444

497,665

11,620

28.022

1,664,595

$

78,768

826

79,594

( 373,185)

Net total receivables $228*069 $20j10 $14365 M49252 $j-ZL!-JI1O SZ9J94 $tjg!t10

There are no net receivables, other than delinquent property taxes and municipal court fines, that the
City does not expect to collect within a year. The City expects to collect approximately $50,000 of the
$110,504 total delinquent property taxes within a year and $150,000 of the $627,444 of the municipal
court fines within a year. These amounts are similar to the amounts collected in previous years.
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5. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of cash held for specific purposes in accordance with bond covenants or other
legal restrictions. At September 30,2024, restricted cash is comprised of the following:

General

Fund

$2,831
446

Debt

Service

Fund

199,993

Nonmajor

Total

Governmental Utility

Fund

$$$Landfi ll capital projects

Park projects

Debt service

Tourism

Court security

Court technology

School safety

Grants

Utility capital projects

Utility customer deposits

Totals

87,343

21,087

9,929

25,795

6,658

$ 2,831

446

199,993

87,343

21,087

9,929

25,795

6,658

2,119,283

70.270

$3271_ $199p93 $150.g12 $354*082 $A189553
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended September 30,2024 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Streets
Lost Creek Dam and Reservoir
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Righhto-use leased machinery

and equipment
SBITA assets
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
Streets
Lost Creek Dam and Reservoir
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Right{o-use leased machinery

and equipment
SBITA
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net ( 107.482) 7.606.273

$_t*009J99 ($l-021182) $_-_-_965 $- $-7p0!t51

Beginning

Balances

$ 295.178
295.',t78

s,402,850
2,825,847

8,355,568
2,685,704

227,788

268,572

19.766.329

3,528,079
1,451,125
4,839,408
'1,870,648

227,788

134,661

12,051.709

7.714.620

lncreases

$-

40,714
53,336

93,455

287,418
220.504
695.427

205,537
150,768
167,436
162,261

75,751
4',t.156

802.909

Decreases

$

Reclassifications

$-

Ending
Balances

$ 295,178
295.178

5,443,564
2,879,',t83

8,355,568
2,720,673

227,788

460,324
220.504

20.307.604

3,733,616
1,601,893

5,006,844
1,974,423

227,788

I 15,61 1

4'1 .1 56
12.701.331

58,486

95,666

't54.152

58,486

94,801

153.287

865

Governmental activities capital
assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to departments as follows

General Government
Public Safety
Streets
Culture and Recreation

Total

$ 76,208
306,112
171,095
249.494

$802*909
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Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated:
Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Right-to-use leased machinery
and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Right-to-use Ieased machinery

and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Business{ype activities capital
assets, net

Component Unit:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Machinery and equipment
Component unit capital assets, net

General Fund
Debt Service

5.305.852 95.942

$-5,A 8Z1 fi-U€p54 ($lJLn $-

13,316,117

1,548,185
45,199

1',tz.679
't5.022.180

8,437,811
1 ,1 59,230

45,1 99

74.088
9.716.328

Beginning
Balances

$ 10,800

6.439

$______4361

Due From Fund
Utility Fund
Utility Fund

473,370
15,34',1

74.766
563.477

367,386
68,380

31.769
467.535

lncreases

$-

333
s 333

24,040

54.442
78.482

24,040

54.442
78.482

Decreases

$

356,248

356,248

Reclassifications

$

Beginning

Balances

$ 368.0'19

lncreases

$ 923.0'12

Decreases

$ '11.771

Reclassifications

($356.248)

Ending

Balances

$ 923.012

14,145,735
1,539,486

45,1 99

133,003

15.586.423

8,805,197
1,203,570

45,1 99

51.4',t5

1 0.1 05,381

5.578.042

$_0-681*0!1

Ending
Balances

$ 10,800

6.772

$_____4-0zt$- $-

7. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

A. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2024 consisted of the following

Due to Fund Amount
$435,000

29.407

P

Short-term borrowings
Short-term borrowings

Total

All amounts are scheduled to be repaid within one year

39
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A. Lonq{erm Liabilities

Longterm obligations include debt and other longterm liabilities. Changes in longterm obligations
for the period ended September 30,2024, are as follows:

Beginning

Balance

$1 ,942,515
't8,203

205,076
138,484

82.705
$2386*983

$ 512,485
33,384

40,065
55.707

$__s41311

$

287,418
220,504

40.339

J_5482et

$2,740,000

74,766
19.187

$2-833J53

$302,609
3,213

83,658
76,542
54,472

54.943
s5tj.a37

$140,391
5,891

28,598
41.556

$Z16lfl6

Ending

Balance

$1,639,906
't4,990

121,418
349,360
166,032

68,1 01

$rc59-802

$3,112,094
27,493
86,233
33.338

$3259J58

Amount
Due Within

One Year

$286,984

42,750
78,178
46,031

30.645

$484.588

$93,016

27,883
15.002

$xl5Bqr

lncreases Decreases

Governmental Activities:

Bonds payable

Premiums on bonds payable

Notes payable

Right-to-use lease liabilities

SBITA liabilities

Compensated absences *

Total governmental activities

Business{vpe Activities:
Bonds payable

Premiums on bonds payable

Right-to-use lease liabilities

Compensated absences *

Total business-type activities

JEDC
Note payable $__308*8!1 $- $_t4B:A $__223-918 $_tZ-553

* - Other long-term liabilities

For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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B. Bonds Pavable

Bonds payable at September 30, 2024, including net unamortized premiums on the bonds, are
comprised of the following individual issues:

Range of Final Annual Bonds Business-
Bonds lnterest Maturity Serial Outstanding Governmental Type

Description Authorized Rates Date Pavments atgl30l24 Activities Activities

ceneral Obligation $4,095,000 2.000% 811512029 $45,000 to $ 365,000 $ 40,000 $ 325,000
Refunding Bonds, 4.000% $680,000
Series 2015

Plus bond premium

General Obligation
Refunding Bonds,
Series 2021

Limited Tax Notes,
Series 2022

Combination Tax and
Limited Pledge Revenue
Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2024

42,483

1,410,000

14,990

1,362,906

27,493

47,0942,095,000 1.690% 2t15t2031 $140,000 to
$250,000

270,000 4.9500/o 12t1t2029 $33,000 to
$45,000

237,000 237,000

2.740.000

Total all bonds $4J94183 $l-61r.896 $q1jl9.587

Aggregate maturities of the bonds payable (principal and interest) for the years subsequent to
September 30,2024 are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Principal Total

2,740,000 4.Q50o/o 811512034 $260,000 to 2.740.000
$355,000

Year Endinq September 30.
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030-2031
Totals

Year Endinq September 30.
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030-2034
Totals

$ 286,984
288,984
274,817
281,650
177,324
330.147

g1-"639*906

$ 68,238
63,935
58,418
54,445
51,229
50,974

$341239

$ 355,222
352,919
333,235
336,095
228,553
381.121

$l-98L145

Business-tvoe Activities
Principal

$ 93,016
358,016
323,183
338,350
349,676

1,649.853
$3Jll2*091

lnterest
$1 15,384

120,713
106,896

94,021
80,571

204.491
$722-079

$ 208,400
478,729
430,079
432,371
430,247

1.854,344
$333L120
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C. Notes Payable

The City has notes payable at September 30,2024 as follows

Governmental activities:

Note payable to Prosperity Bank to finance the purchase of a

used Broce Sweeper. The note is due in annual principal and
interest payments of $44,054 at 3.60% per annum through
October 2023. The note is collateralized by the Sweeper. $121.418

The JEDC has a note payable at September 30,2024 as follows

Note payable to the Jacksboro National Bank to finance the
purchase of land held for sale. The note is due in annual principal
payments plus interest at 4.25o/o per annum through February
2027. The note is collateralized by 177 acres in Jacksboro, Texas. $223-Et8

The debt service requirements on the notes payable at September 30, 2024 are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Endinq September 30. Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
Totals

Year Endino September 30.

2025
2026
2027
Totals

Principal lnterest Total

$ 42,750
44,413
34.255

s121.418

$ 87,553
90,228
46.137

$24.EA

$3,902
2,239

549
$6*090

$ 6,136
3,461

705
$r_0J02

$ 46,652
46,652
34.804

$128J108

$ 93,689
93,689
46.842

$234220

D. Riqht-to-Use Lease Liabilities

The City has right-to-use lease liabilities at September 30,2024 as follows

Governmental activities:

ln June 2O21,the City leased a2021 Ford F-150 Pickup with an
initial value of $26,498. Forty-eight monthly payments of $587 are
due beginning in June 2021. The lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%.
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ln June 2021,fihe City leased a2021 Ford F-150 Pickup with an
initial value of $19,485. Forty-eight monthly payments of $431 are
due beginning in June 2021. The lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%.

ln June 2021, the City leased a 2021 Ford F-250 Pickup with an
initial value of $14,255. Forty-eight monthly payments of $316 are
due beginning in June 2021.fhe lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%.

ln June 2022,hhe City leased a 2021 Ford F-150 with an initial
value of $24,600. Sixty monthly payments of $442 are due
beginning in June 2022. The lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%.

ln January 2023, the City leased a 2022 Chevrolet Silverado
Pickup with an initial value of $73,188. Sixty monthly payments of
$1,487 are due beginning in January 2023. The lease bears
interest at 8.09%.

ln June 2023, the City leased a 2018 Ford F-250 Pickup with an
initial value of $7,304. Twenty-four monthly payments of $327 are
due beginning in June 2023.fhe lease bears interest at7.04%.

ln February 2024,lhe City leased a 2019 Chevrolet Tahoe with an
initial value of $8,567. Twelve monthly payments of $763 are due
beginning in February 2024.The lease bears interest a|12.39o/o.

ln May 2O24,lhe City leased a2024 Dodge Durango with an initial
value of $53,949. Sixty monthly payments of $1,238 are due
beginning in May 2024.The lease bears interest at13.40o/o.

ln June 2024, the City leased a 2024 Dodge Durango with an
initial value of $53,949. Sixty monthly payments of $1,238 are due
beginning in June 2024.The lease bears interest at 13.28o/o.

ln June 2024, the City leased a 2024 Dodge Durango with an
initial value of $53,949. Sixty monthly payments of $1,238 are due
beginning in June 2024.The lease bears interest at13.28o/o.

ln June 2024, the City leased a 2024 Dodge Durango with an
initial value of $53,949. Sixty monthly payments of $1,238 are due
beginning in June 2024.The lease bears interest at 13.28o/o.

ln August 2024, the City leased a 2024 Dodge Durango with an
initial value of $53,949. Sixty monthly payments of $1,238 are due
beginning in June 2O24.The lease bears interest at12.21o/o.

Total governmental activities right-to-use lease liabilities
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2,495

13,985

53,116

2,550

2,242

51,361

53,902

53,902

53,902

52.859
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Business-type activities:

ln June 2021,the City leased a2021 Ford F-150 Pickup with an
initial value of $18,101 . Forty-eight monthly payments of $401 are
due beginning in June 2021. The lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%. $ 3,952

ln August 2021,hhe City leased a2021 Ford F-250 with an initial
value of $40,136. Sixty monthly payments of $721 are due
beginning in August 2021. fhe lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%. 16,100

ln April 2024, the City leased a 2019 Ford F-350 with an initial
value of $14,857. Thirty monthly payments of $552 are due
beginning in April 2024. fhe lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%. 11,543

ln January 2024,hhe City leased a 2023 Ford F-350 with an initial
value of $59,909. Sixty monthly payments of $1,320 are due
beginning in January 2024. The lease is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 3.00%. 54,638

Total business-type activities right-to-use lease liabilities s86233

The debt service requirements on the right-to-use lease liabilities at September 30, 2024 are as
follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Endino September 30. Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
Totals

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
Totals

$ 78,178
69,878
76,868
71,547
52.889

$349J60

$ 36,753
29,554
21,238
12,171

3,257
Et02*973

$114,931
99,432
98,106
83,7'18
56.146

$45e$3

Year Endinq September 30.

Business-tvoe Activities
Principal lnterest Total

$27,883
24,805
12,871
14,720
5,954

$86233

$ 7,948
5,706
3,672
1,823

152
flgjqr

$ 35,831
30,511
16,543
16,543
6,106

$r_05.53r
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E. SBITA Liabilities

The City has SBITA liabilities at September 30,2024 as follows

Governmental activities:

ln October 2023,hhe City entered into a SBITA for body camera
software with an initial value ol $42,026. Five annual payments
ranging from $8,751 to $9,843 are due beginning in October 2023.
The SBITA is computed at the City's incremental borrowing rate of
5.00%. $ 32,863

ln October 2023, the City entered into a SBITA for fleet camera
software with an initial value of $47,809. Five annual payments
ranging from $2,039 to $11,020 are due beginning in October
2023. The SBITA is computed at the City's incremental borrowing
rate of 5.00%. 45,770

ln November 2023, the City entered into a SBITA for CopSync
software with an initial value of $37,050. Two annual payments of
$21,050 and $16,800 are due beginning in November 2023.The
SBITA is computed at the City's incremental borrowing rate of
5.00%. 16,000

ln July 2024, the City entered into a SBITA for records
management software with an initial value of $93,619. Four
annual payments ranging from $19,800 to $29,670 are due
beginning in July 2024. The SBITA is computed at the City's
incremental borrowing rate of 5.00%. 71,399

Total governmental activities SBITA liabilities Et66-032

The debt service requirements on the SBITA liabilities at September 30,2024 are as follows

Year Endinq Seotember 30,
Governmental Activities

Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
Totals

$ 46,031
43,791
46,345
19,370
10,495

$166-032

$ 8,302
6,000
3,811
1,493

524
$20;t!0

$ 54,333
49,791
50,156
20,863
11.019

E1{til62
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F. Aqqreoate Maturities of All Longterm Debt

Aggregate maturities of all long-term debt (principal and interest) for the years subsequent to
September 30,2024 are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Endinq September 30, Principal lnterest Total

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030-2031
Totals

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030-2034
Totals

$ 453,943
447,066
432,285
372,567
240,708
330,147

v-zsJ_t6

$1 1 7,1 95
101,728
84,016
68,109
55,010
50,974

$411-032

$ 571,138
548,794
516,301
440,676
295,718
381.121

vJ53J48

Busi Activities
Year Ending September 30, Principal Total

$ 120,899
382,821
336,054
353,070
355,630

1.649,853
$3J198322

$123,332
126,419
110,568
95,844
80,723

204.491
$741.377

$ 244,231
509,240
446,622
448,914
436,353

1.854.344
$3-939J04

Year Ending September 30,

2025
2026
2027
Totals

Principal Total

$ 87,553
90,228
46j37

$223-EA

$ 6,136
3,461

705
$r_0J02

$ 93,689
93,689
46.842

$234220

9. DEFINED BENEFIT PENS'O'V PLAN

A. Plan Description

The City participates as one of over 900 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined
benefit pension plan administered by TMRS. TMRS is a statewide public retirement plan created by
the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Title 8,
Subtitle G (TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in
the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the
System with a six-member, Governor-appointed Board of Trustees; however, TMRS does not
receive any funding from the State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified
plan under Section 401(a) of the lnternal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) that can be obtained atv'wvw.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.
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B. Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the City
Council, within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated based on the sum of the employee's contributions with
interest, the City-financed monetary credits with interest, and their age at retirement and other
actuarial factors. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment
options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a lump sum distribution in
an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75o/o of the total
member's contributions and interest.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31,2023 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
lnactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

C. Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5o/o, 60/o, or 7o/o of employee gross
earnings, and the city matching ratios are either 1:1 (1 to 1), 1.5:1 (1-112to 1) or 2:1(2 to 1), both
as adopted by the governing body of the participating city. Under the state law governing TMRS,
the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The City's contribution rate is based on the liabilities created
from the benefit plan options selected by the City and any changes in benefits or actual experience
over time.

Employees of the City were required to contribute 7o/o of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 13.620/o and 14.12o/o in calendar years 2023 and
2024, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2024, were
$321,295, and were equal to the required contributions.

D. Net Pension Liability

The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the Total
Pension Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31 , 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

28
48
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lnflation 2.5o/o Per \eat
Overall payroll growth 2.75o/o per year, adjusted down for populated declines, if any
lnvestment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

Salary increases are based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based
on the PUB(10) mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General
Employee table used for females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are based on
the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality tables. The rates for actives, healthy
retirees and beneficiaries are projected on the fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for
future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables for healthy
retirees is used with a A-year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. ln
addition, a3.5o/o and 3.0% minimum mortality rate is applied, for males and females respectively, to
reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a
fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements subject to the
floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the
experience of TMRS over the four-year period from December 31 ,2018 to December 31,2022.
They were adopted in2023 and first used in the December 31,2023 actuarialvaluation. The post-
retirement mortality assumption for Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) is based on the Mortali$
Experience lnvestigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31 ,2013 with the
factors phasing into being based on a unisex blend of the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment for males and females with both male and female rates
multiplied by 107.5% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB. The current table of
APRs is explicitly valued through 2032 and then it is assumed the APRs and the valuation mortality
assumptions will be consistent over time. For members, a unisex blend of 70% ol the males table
and 30% of the female table is used, while 30% of the male table and 70% of the female table is

used for beneficiaries.

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each
major asset class in plan year 2023 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Global Public Equity
Core Fixed lncome
Non-Core Fixed lncome
Other Public and Private Markets
Real Estate
Hedge Funds
Private Equity
Total

Tarqet Allocation
Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return (Arithmetic)

7.7o/o

4.9%
8.7o/o

8.1o/o

5.8o/o

6.9o/o

11.8%

35o/o

60/0

20%
12o/o

12o/o

5o/o

10%
19l&
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Discount Rate

Balances as of December 31,2O22

Changes for the year:

Service cost

lnterest on total pension liability

Changes of benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual

experience

Changes of assumptions

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions

Administrative expenses

Other changes

Balances as of December 31,2023

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will
be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary
Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the longterm expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total
Pension Liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability / (Asset)
lncrease (Decrease)

$9,016,309 $7,381,167 $1,635,142

Total Pension
Liability

357,"t22

605,408

1 15,866

( 102,307)

Fiduciary Net
Position

(b)

295,325

151,782

851,665

( 45't,737)

( 5,435)

( _______38)

$8222J29

Net Pension
Liability / (Asset)

(a) - (b)

357,122

605,408

1 15,866

( 102,307)

( 2e5,325)

( 151,782)

( 851,665)

5,435

38

$13t2-932

( 451,737)

$9$406fl_

Net pension liability:
Net pension liability associated with the primary government

Net pension liability associated with the component unit
$1,269,339 (1)

48,593

Total $13t7-932

(1) Of this amount, $850,836 is reported as Governmental Activities and is generally liquidated by the
General Fund.
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Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75o/o, as well as what the City's net pension liability / (asset) would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.75%) or 1 percentage point higher (7.75o/o) than
the current rate.

1o/o Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate lncrease

5.75o/o 6.75% 7.75o/o

Net pension liability $2$77388 $1312p32 V74-329

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately
issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained atwww.tmrs.com.

E. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the primary government recognized pension expense of
$335,028 and the component unit recognized $12,826 for a total pension expense of $347,854.

At September 30,2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Differences in assumption changes

Net difference betweeri projected and actual earnings

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date

Total

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

$102,941

200,722

241.574

$a$fiZ

Deferred
lnflows

of Resources

$

66,906

$_66-906

$525,132
20,105

$545232

$ 64,439
2.467

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows of resources associated with the primary government
Deferred outflows of resources associated with the component unit

Total

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources associated with the primary government
Deferred inflows of resources associated with the component unit

Total
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$241,575 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the subsequent fiscal period. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31:
2024
2025
2026
2027

$ 85,241
68,630

153,570
( 70.684)

Total WJil
10. DEFINED OTHER POST.EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

A. Plan Description

The City participates in a defined benefit groupterm life insurance plan administered by the TMRS
known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The plan is administered as a single-
employer plan. This is a voluntary program in which participating member cities may elect, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage for their active members, including or not
retirees. The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal
to the employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings for the 12-
month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is considered an other
post-employment benefit (OPEB) and is a fixed amount of $7,500. As the SDBF covers both active
and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded
OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are accumulated).

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all
death benefit payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life
insurance during employees' entire basis.

B. Benefits Provided

The SDBF provides a death benefit for retirees which is considered an other post-employment
benefit (OPEB) and is a fixed amount of $7,500.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31,2023 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
lnactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

21

12
40

C. TotalOPEB Liabilitv

The City's Total OPEB Liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31,
2023 and a measurement date of December 31, 2023.

Actuarial Assumptions

1. General inflation - General inflation is assumed to be 2.50% per year

2. Discount rates - Because the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded trust under GASB
Statement No. 75, the relevant discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB liability is based
on the Fidelity lndex's "2}-year Municipal GO AA lndex" rate as of the measurement date.

3. lndividual salary increases - Salary increases are assumed to occur once a year, on
January 1. Therefore, the pay used forthe period yearfollowing the valuation date is equal
to the reported pay for the prior year, increased by the salary increase assumption. Salaries
are assumed to increase on a graduated service-based scale ranging from 3.6% to 11.85%.

4. Termination rates - The base table rates vary by service and length until retirement
eligibility. For the City, the base table is then multiplied by a factor of 117.0o/o based on the
experience of the city in comparison to the group as a whole. A further multiplier is applied
depending on an employee's classification: 1) Fire - 630/0,2) Police - 82o/o, or 3) Other -
1160/o.

The probabilities for the member's first three years of service are 22.5o/o, 17.5%, and 14.5%.
After 3 years of service, base termination rates vary by number of years remaining until first
retirement eligibili$. Termination rates end at first eligibility for retirement.

5. Forfeiture rates (withdrawal of member deposits from TMRS) - These rates for vested
members vary by age and employer match, and they are expressed as a percentage of the
termination rates.

6. Service retirees and beneficiary mortality rates - For calculating the OPEB liability and the
OPEB contribution rates, the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality
tables. Male rates are multiplied by 103% and female rates are multiplied by 105%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale MP-2021 (with immediate
convergence) to account for future mortality improvements. Based on the size of the city,
rates are multiplied by an additional factor of 100.0%.
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7. Disabled annuitant mortality rates - For calculating the OPEB liability and the OPEB
contribution rates, the mortality tables for healthy retirees are used with a 4-year set-
forward for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. ln addition, a 3.5o/o and 3%
minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who
become disabled for males and females, respectively. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by the most recent Scale MP-2021 (with immediate convergence) to
account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3.5% and 3% floor.

8. Pre-retirement mortality - For calculating the OPEB liability and the contribution rates, the
PUB(10) mortality tables, with 110% of the Public Safety table used for males and 100% of
the General Employee table used for females. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis by the most recent Scale MP-2021 (with immediate convergence) to account for future
morta lity improvements.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Total
OPEB
Liability

Balance as of December 31 ,2022

Changes for the year:

Service cost

lnterest on total OPEB liability

Change in benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual experience

Change in assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments

Net changes

Balance as of December 31 ,2023

$133.697

TotalOPEB Liability:
Total OPEB liability associated with the primary
government $145,350 (1)

Total OPEB liability associated with the component unit 5,564

Total $150-914

(1) Of this amount, $97,428 is reported as Governmental Activities and is generally liquidated by the
General Fund.

4,553

5,397

5,168

7,520

( 5.421)

17,217

$150tg!4
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2024

10. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (CONT',D.)

Sensitivity Analysis

1o/o

Decrease
2.77o/o

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
3.77%, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.77o/o) or 1 percentage point higher (4.77o/o) than
the current rate.

Current
Discount Rate

1o/o

lncrease
4.77%3.7

TotalOPEB liability $rzzJ38 9150'915 g!29-906

D. OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the primary government recognized OPEB expense of
$5,516 and the component unit recognized $21 1 for a total OPEB expense of $5,727.

At September 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date

Total

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

$1,592

8,383

$9-925

Deferred
lnflows

of Resources

$

23,654

$23-654

$9,608
367

s9.975

$22,782
872

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows of resources associated with the primary government
Deferred outflows of resources associated with the component unit

Total

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources associated with the primary government
Deferred inflows of resources associated with the component unit

Total
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GITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT',D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2024

10. DEFTNED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFTT PLAN (CONT',D.)

$8,383 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in

the subsequent fiscal period. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

YearEnded December3l:
2024
2025
2026
2027
Total

($ 8,t tzl
( 10,778)
( 4,e88)

1.816
(s22.062\

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Litiqation

The City is subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of business.
It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and
lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the City.

B. Federaland State Grants

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and
adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the
rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the
collectability of any related receivable may be impaired. ln the opinion of the City, there are no
significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the
respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial
statements for such contingencies.

C. Construction Commitments

The City entered into contracts for construction projects that were still open as of September 30,
2024. The total commitment under the contracts is $4,691,000 and the amount incurred is

$923,012, leaving a commitment of $3,767,988 at September 30, 2024. The remaining
commitments will be liquidated by the Utility Fund.

12. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The City's top ten taxpayers' taxable values equal $40,444,320, or approximately 18% of the total
taxable value for 2023-24. A significant decline in taxable values from these entities could have a
material adverse effect on the City's operations.
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EXHIBIT 8.1

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE . GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance With
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Other taxes
Charges for services
Licenses, permits, and fees
Recreation fees
Court fines and fees
Rentals
Contributions
lntergovernmental
lnterest income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Legislative
General government
Public safety
Streets
Culture and recreation

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest charges
Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
lssuance of right-to-use lease liabilities
lssuance of SBITA liabilities
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

80,600 80,600
10,500 10,500

3,753,410 3,824,297

(97,965)

13 11

(122,660) (1,035,41e) (912,759)

$ 1,261,995
1,400,000

325,000
12,000
25,000
31,000
30,000
91,450
15,000
43,000
83,000
70,000

268 000
3,655,445

36,472
965,439

1,637,044
486,660
471,695

65,000

$ 1,261,995
1,400,000

325,000
12,000
25,000
31,000
30,000
91,450
15,000
64,000
83,000
70,000

293,192
3,701,637

$ 1,179,481
1,291,762

359,114
7,505
2,634

29,289
24,279

142,596
'13,808

90,760
53,658
53,375

277 186
3,525,447

36,040
1,127 ,821
1,578,360

496,804
406,174
684,965

207,085
23,617

4,560,866

$ (82,514)
(108,238)

34,114
(4,4e5)

(22,366)
(1,711)
(s,721)
51,146
(1,1e2)
26,760

(29,342)
(16,625)
(16,006)

(176,1e0)

36,472
961,833

1,692,930
486,660
471,695

83,607

432
(165,988)
114,570
(10,144)
65,521

(601,358)

(126,485)

20,000 20,000

150,000
(15,000)

150,000

155,000 170,000

57,035 47,340

1,767,831

See accompanying nofes fo the basic financial statements.
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32,180
287,418
220,504
150,000

12,180
287,418
220,504

690,102 520,102

(392,657)

767,831

$ 1,824,866 $ 1,815,171 $ 1,422,514 $ (392,657)

(345,317)

1,767,831

Fund balances - ending



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2023 2022 2021
Total Pension Liability

Service cost
lnterest on total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments/refunds of contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability, beginning

Total pension liability, ending (a)

Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments/refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses
Other

Net change in fiduciary net position

Fiduciary net position, beginning

Fiduciary net position, ending (b)

Net pension liability, ending (a)- (b)

Fiduciary net position as a o/o of total pension liability

Covered payroll

Net pension liability as a o/o of covered payroll

$9,540,661 $ 9,016,309 $ 8,466,790

$ 357,122
605,408

$ 317,467
567,932

87,542

423.422\

316,705
531,344

127,454

$

1 15,866
(102,307)
(451,737) (444,253)

524,352

9,016,309

549,519

8,466,790

531,250

7,935,540

$ zss,ezs $
151,782
851,665

(451,737)
(5,435)

(38)

259,677
133,070

(581,78e)
(423,422)

(5,04e)
6,024

$ 266,975
129,570
926,090

(444,253)
(4,2e4)

28

841,562

381 167

(611,48e)

7,992,656

874,116

7,118,5407

$ 8,222,729 $ 7,381,167 $ 7,992,656

$ t,317,932 $ 1,635,142 $ 474,134

86.19% 81.86% 94.40o/o

$2,168,317 $ 1,901,001 $ 1,850,993

60.78o/o 86.01% 25.620/o
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

EXHIBIT 8.2

2014

$ 326,798
521,416

$ 333,732 $
495,514

$ 29e,253 $
432,160

286,906 $
406,479

275,573 $
401,993

305,023
469,119

221,377
382,649

(222,7_89)

(502,321)

(73,710)
49,481

(333,329)

(63,756)
61,085

(413,386)

(138)

(2e5,891)

(51 ,000) 154,536 37,097

(35e,597) (322,981) (389,423)

$ 7,935,540

123,104

7,812,436

471,688

7,340,748

$ 7,812,436

363,545

6,977,203

562,968

6,414,235

341,059

6,073,176

261,509

5,811,667

307,997

5,503,670

$ 7,340,748 $ 6,977,203 $ 0,+ 14,235 $ 6,073,176 $ 5,811,667

$ 283,610 $
133,077
507,617

(502,322)
(3,2e1)

(128)

271,908 $
133,569
886,553

(333,32e)
(5,020)

(151)

253,522 $
126,491

(176,608)
(35e,5e7)

(3,41e)
(178)

243,284
122,430
713,191

(322,981)
(3,702)

(188)

$ 229,525 $
116,764
328,686

(38e,423)
(3,71e)

(200)

230,041 $
115,371

7,285
(413,386)

(4,438)
(219\

182,117
99,312

268,117
(2e5,8e1)

(2,800)
(230)

418,563

6,699,977

953,530

5,746,447

(15e,78e)

5,906,236

752,034

5,154,202

281,633

4,872,569

(65,346)

4,937,915

250,625

4,687,290

_$_r,118519_

$ 817,ooo

$ 6,699,977 $ 5,746,447 $ 5,906,236 $ 5,154,202 $ 4,872,569 $ 4,937,915

$ 1,112,459 $ 1,594,301 $ 1,070,967 $ 1,260,033 $ 1,200,607

89.70o/o 85.760/o 78.28o/o 84.650 80.36% 80.23o/"

$ 873,752

84.97o/o

$ 1,901,096 $ 1,908,129 $ 1,807,008 $ 1,748,996 $ 1,668,061

42.98o/o 58.30% 88.230 61.23o/r 75.54o/o

$ 1,648,162 $ 1,403,518

72.85o/o 62.250/o
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2024 2023 2022

$ 310,337 $ 293,780 $ 267,189

(293,780) (267,189\

$ $

$ 2,215,735 $ 2,1 55,386 $ 1 ,924,036

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 14.01% 13.630/o 13.89%

Valuation Date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 22 years (longest amortization ladder)

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 12oh soft corridor

lnflation 2.5Qo/o

Salary lncreases 3.60% to 11.85% including inflation

lnvestment Rate of Return 6.750/o

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that vary by age. Last updated for the 2023 valuation
pursuant to an experience study of the period ending 2022.

Mortality Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. Male rates are
multiplied by 103% and female rates are multiiplied by 105o/o. The rates are projected

on a fully generational basis by the most recent Scale MP-221 (with immediate
convergence).

Pre-retirement: PUB(10) mortality tables, with the 110% of the Public Safety table used

for males and the 100% of the General Employee table used for females. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by the most recent Scale MP-2021 (with

immediate convergence).

Actuarial determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined
contribution

Contribution deficiency

Covered payroll

Other lnformation:
Notes

(310,337)

$

There were no benefit changes during the year

The data on this schedule is based on the City's fiscal year-end, not the valuation/measurement data as provided in other
schedules of this report.
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EXHIBIT B.3

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

$ 269,767 $ 285,049 $ 266,370 $ 254,155 $ 234,544 $ 230,625 $ 210,963

(26e,767\ (285,04e) (266,370) (254,155) (234,544\ (230,625) (210,e63)

$$$ $ $$$

$ 1,844,842 $ 1,934,816 $ 1,877,141 $ 1,815,954 $ 1,691,128

14.620/o 14.73o/o 14.19o/o 14.00vo 13.874/o

_$_1,66e,!99_

13.82o/o

$ 1,538,210

13.71o/o
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2023 2022 2021
TotalOPEB Liability

Service cost
lnterest on total OPEB liability
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability, beginning
Total OPEB liability, ending

$ 4,553
5,397

5,1 68
7,520

(5,421)

10,074
3,456

2,084
(62,e26)

(3,612)

B,BB5

3,594

(7,05e)
5,591

(3,332)

$$

17,217

133,697

(50,e24)

184,621-rrv55s-

7,679

176 942
$ 150,914

Covered employee payroll $ 2,168,317 $ 1,901,001 $ 1,850,993

Total OPEB liability ds d o/o of covered employee payroll 6.96% 7.03o/o 9.97o/o

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accordance with the
standards of GASB 75, they should not be shown here. Therefore, we have shown only years for which the new
GASB statements have been implemented.

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB Codification P52.101 to pay related
benefits for the OPEB plan.
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EXHIBIT 8.4

2020 2019 2018 2017

$ 8,745
4,181

(6,872)
23,674
(1,141)

5,915
4,578

(6,442)
24,450
(1,144)

6,867
4,216

(4,5e5)
(8,e62)

(e04)

5,772
4,079

9,936
(874)

$$$

28,587

148,355
T17E:3r,-

27,357

120,998

(3,378)

124,376

18,913

105,463
$ 148,35s $ 120,998 fi 124,376

$ 1,901,096 $ 1,908,129 $ 1,807,008 $ 1,748,996

7.11o/o9.31% 7.77o/o 6.70o/o
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SIA TEMENIS AND SCH EDULES



Assets
Receivables (net):

lntergovernmental
Other

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Totalassets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted

Totalfund balances

Total liabilities and fund balance

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FUN DS
SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Hotel/Motel
Tax
Fund

Court
Technology

Fund

$ $ $
2,745

87 343 9,929 21,087

$ 90,088 $ g,gzg $ 21,087

$ $ $

90,088 9,929 21,087
90,088 9,929 21 087

$ 90,099 $ 9,929 $ 21,087

Court
Security

Fund
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EXHIBIT C.1

Grant
Fund

$ $ $ 11,620 $ 11,620
2,745

150,812I,838 15,957 6,658

$ 9,838 $ 15,957 $ 18,278 $ t 65,177

$ $ $

9,838 15 957 18,278 165 177
9,838 15,957 18,278 165,177

$ g,ssa $ 15,957 $ 18,278 $ t 65,177

School
Safety
Fund

Crossing
Guard
Fund

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Hotel/Motel
Tax
Fund

$ 15,400 $

3,233
18,633

13,773

10,463
24,236

(5,603)

95,691

Court
Technology

Fund

Court
Security

Fund

Revenues
Hotel/Motel taxes
Court fines
lntergovernmental
lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Public safety
Capitaloutlay
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$
4,597

153

5,606

649
4,750 6,255

4,750

5,179

6,255

14,832

$ 90,088 $ 9,929 $ 21,087
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EXHIBIT C.2

School
Safety
Fund

Crossing
Guard
Fund

Grant
Fund

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

$ $ $ $

351 569
18,868

157

15,400
10,203
18,868
5,112

351 569 19,025 49,583

14,994
13,773
14,994
10,463

14,994

4,031

39,230

351 10,353

154,8249,487 15,388 14 247

$ 9,838 _q_jf57_ _$ 1w.g_ _$ 165JJl_

569
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EXHIBIT G.3

Revenues
Property taxes
lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service:

Principal retirement
lnterest
Paying agent fees
Total expenditures

Fund balance - ending

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COM PARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30,2024

Budgeted Amounts

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Original Final Actual

$ 365,468
2,500

$ 365,468
2,500

$ 343,094
14,801

(22,374)
12,301

$

443,000

56,343
1,500 1 500

500,843 500,843

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (132,875) (132,875)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

161,376 161 ,376
161,376 161,376

Net change in fund balance 28,501 28,501

Fund balance - beginning 211,623 211 623

367 968 367 968 357,895 (10,073)

302,609

39,941
825

343,375 157,468

14,520 147,395

4,609 (156,767)

4,609

19,129

211,623

(156,767)

(s,372)

$ 240,124 $ 240,124 $ 230,752 $ (9,372)

443,000
56,343

140,391

16,402
675
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EXHIBIT C.4

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
HOTEL/MOTEL TA)( SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COM PARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30,2024

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

$ 25,000

2,500
$ 25,000

2,500

Revenues
Hotel/Motel taxes
Court fines
lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Capitaloutlay
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive

Actual

$ 15,400 $

3,233

(e,600)
(2,500)

3,233
27,500 27 500 18,633 (8,867)

20,000

20,000 20,000 24,236 (4,236)

7,500 7,500 (5,603)

95,691

(1 3,1 03)

95,691 95,691

$ 103,191 $ 103,191 $ gO,OAg $ (13,103)

20,000 13,773
10,463

6,227
(10,463)
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EXHIBIT C.5

Revenues
Court fines
lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
COURT TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BU DGETARY COM PARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Budgeted Amounts

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Original Final Actual

$ 1,500 $ t,soo $ 4,597
153

3,097
153

$

1,500 1,500 4,750 3,250

6,100 6 100 6 100

6,1 00 6 100 b 100

(4,600)

5.179

(4,600)

5,179

4,750

5,',179

9,350

$ 579 $ 579$g,SZg$S,SSO
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EXHIBIT C.6

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
COURT SECURITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BU DGETARY COMPARISON SGHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30,2024

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Court fines
lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

$ $ $ $2,500
10

2,500
10

5,606

649

3,1 06
639

2,510 2,510 6,255 3 745

1,750 7501 1,750

750 7501 1,750

6,255 5,495

14,832 14,832 14,832

$ 15,592 $ 15,592 $ Z1,OAZ $ S,+gS

760760
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EXHIBIT C.7

Revenues
Court fines

lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
SCHOOL SAFETY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$ $ $ $500
10

500

10

(500)

341351

510 510 351 (15e)

510 510 351 (1 5e)

9,487 9,487 9,487

$ g,ggz $ s,ggz $ g,ese $ (1 5e)

71



EXHIBIT C.8

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
CROSSING GUARD SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COM PARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30,2024

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Court fines
lnterest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

$ $ $ $500
10

500
10

(500)

559569

510 510 569 59

510 510 59

15,388 15,388 15,388

$ 15,898 $ 15,898 $ 15,957 $ 59

569
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EXHIBIT C.9

Revenues
lntergovernmental

lnterest income
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balance - ending

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
GRANT FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BU DGETARY COM PARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$ 652,244 $ 652,244 $ 18,868
157

(633,376)

157
$

652,244 652,244 19 o25 (633,219)

2,244 2,244 14,994 (2.750\
2,244 2,244 14 994 (12,750)

650,000 650,000 4 031 (645,e6e)

90,000 90,000 (e0,000)

90,000 90,000 (e0,000)

(735,969)740,000 740,000 4,031

14 247 14,247 14 247

$ 754,247 $ 754,247 $ 18,278 $ (735,e6e)
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Jacksboro's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, required
supplementary information and supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Paqes

FinancialTrends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the City's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to

help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels
of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt
in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to

help the reader understand the environment within which the City's
financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over
time and with other governments.

Operating lnformation
These schedules contain information about the City's operations
and resources to help the reader understand how the City's financial
information relates to the services the City provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otheruvise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
annual comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year.

75-84

85-89

90-93

94-95

96-99
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business{ype activities
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net position

Primary government

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

Source: Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports

$ 7,297,063 $ 7,206,547 $ 6,822,235

$ $ $5,391,114
284,580

1,621,369

5,797,362
216,967

1,192,218

5,714,520
254,563
853,1 52

$ 5,930,883
278,399
6't1,780

Tj-F46-o,z_

$ 3,684,798 $ 3,910,965 $ 4,027,114 $

91 5,133 707 ,233 658,525
TIsggBs1 T],618,-1O8- -$-l'685s39

4,203,304
2'19,888

$ 4,423,192

$ 9,075,912
284,580

2,536,502
Tllpr6-p-0f

9,708,327
216,967

$ $ 9,741,634 $ 10,134,187
254,563 278,399

1,511,677 831,668

@_@11.824
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EXHIBIT D.l

Fiscal Year
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

$ 6,142,822
297,453
377,665

5,899,398

327,375
553,508

5,665,692

276,703
890,261

$ 5,645,247

348,702
1,443,696

5,705,520

384,139

1,379,847

$ 5,609,74s

417,689
077 392

$ $ $

$ 6,817,940 $ 6,780,281 $ 6,832,656 $ 7,437,64s $ 7,469,506 $ 7J04326

$ 4,195,398
(108,768)

$ 4,152,986
(511,953)

4,044,008
(482,754)

$ 4,404,191
(23,744)

5,087,937

90,374
$ 4,338,490

160 995
$ $

$ 4,086,630 _$_9,641p99_ $ 3,561,254 $ 4,380,447 $ 5,178,311 $ 5,499,485

$ 10,338,220

297,453
268,897

$ 10,904,570

$ 10,052,384

327,375
41,555

$ 10,421,314

$ 9,709,700

276,703
407,507

_$_1_9,3e3,9!_

$ 10,049,438

348,702
1,419,952

$ 11,818,092

$ 10,793,457

384,139

1,470,221

$ 12,647,817

$ 9,948,235

417,689
2,238,387

_qj_2,604,91_l_
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GITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET POSIT]ON
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

Expenses
Governmental activities:

Legislative
General government
Public safety
Streets
Culture and recreation
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities expenses

Business{ype activities:
Water, sewer, and solid waste utilities

Total business{ype activities expenses

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities program revenues

Business{ype activities:
Charges for services:

Water, sewer, and solid waste utilities
Operating grants and conhibutions
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary government program revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business{ype activities
Total primary government net expense

3,447,655 3,752,982

$ $46,898
'1,050,967

1,254,748
348,773
506,1 38

46,617
1,036,283
1,287,085

503,702
726,902
'152,393

$ 16,740
1,004,252
1 ,363,1 90

541,326
748,874
147,882

3,822,264

17,085
't,251,963
1,378,385

470,082
733,187
134,128

$

240 131
3,984,830

2,470,651 2,691,296
2,470,65',1 2,691,296

$ 5]71263 $ 6,172,900 $ 6,292,915 $ 126

2,323,608
2,323,608

$ 304,671
83,777
42,989

133,693

2,419,918
2,419,918

$ $ $68,39'l
61,969
32,002
61,587

27,721
45,685
24,193
99,816

33,158
126,537
26,626

354,716
3 300

565 '130 227,249 197,415 541,037

2,923,764 2,980,857

3,021,656 2,827,849 2,923,764 2,980,857

$ 3,586,786 $ 3,055 ,098 $ 3,121,179 $ 3,521,894

$ (2,882,525)
698,048

$ (3,525,733) $ (3,624,849) $ (3,443,793)

$ (2,184,477)

2,930,300

91,356

2,825,099
2,750

407,931 453,113 289,56'l-S_1ffi802I -g@6I -5_]ffi42-el
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EXHIBIT D.2
(Page I of2)

Fiscal Year
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

$ $ $ $ $17,007
1,217,870
1,540,584

425,377
747,886
121,899

17,174

1,009,52'1

1,300,342
487,170
674,161
109,513

38,694
1,004,674
1,342,833

523,167

592,057
124,437

40,328
1,060,014
1,394,943

492,677
620,500

50,340

36,040
1,223,084
1,902,820

668,908
660,630

58,973

57,228
1,139,244
1,927,994

612,855
642,289

$

72 332
4,070,623 3,597,881 3,625,862 3,658,802 4,451,942 4,550,455

2,813,144 2,990,864 2,711,781 2,540,481 3,020,565 2,988,234
2,813,144 2,990,864 2,711,781 2,540,481 3,020,565 2,988,234

$ 6,883,767 $ 6,588,745 $ 6,337,643 $ 6,199,283 _$ ?,4?2,s0?_ _q_?,538,999_

$ 31,874
104,052
23,793

333,245

$ 33,393
76,865
10,991

86,459

$ 35,718
80,305
28,804

331,631

$ 68,339
98,011
25,160

138,195

$ 53,338
130,049

25,217
88,294

$ 45,731
199,974
24,279

163,286
87 842 327 388

492 964 207 708 476,458 417.547 624,286 433,270

2,913,610 2,987,575 2,930,677 3,011,660 3,361,562 3,393,586

441 014 647,426
2,913,610 2,987,575 2,930,677 3,452,674 4,008,988 3,393,586

$ 3,406,574 $ 3,195,283 $ 3,407,13s $ 3,870,221 $ 4,633,274 $ 3,826,856

$ (3,577,659) $ (3,390,173)
100,466 (3,289)

T-I33?Zl93-tT(F3/62-t

$ (3,149,404)
218,896

_$_(2,e30,999_

$ (3,241,255)

912,193
T-?prrp-6-2t

$ (3,827,656) $ (4,117,185)
988,423 405,352--$Ts5oFi -$Ed,5gi
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEX^AS

CHANGES rN NET POSITION (CONT'D.)
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental activities:
Taxes:

Property tax
Sales tax
Franchise fees
Hotel occupancy tax
Other taxes

lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business{ype activities:
lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business{ype activities
Total primary government

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

1,458,820
700,297
400,1 58

21,310
1,408
9,998

242,860
392,815

1,487,869
905,428
308,005

22,534
2,774

29,705
174,251
536,798

$ 1,464,291
1,100,538

398,688

6,079
422,937

1,901,412

$ 1 ,514,785 $
699,433
347,271
22,877

2,409
21,472

238,843
393,447

3,240,537

$

5,293,945 3,227,666 3,467 364

7,775 12,819

(1,885,144) (38e,664)-S--405,8-0f -5--2^816"0-0--
:-

(536,7e8)
(523,979)-$'-T4mr

$ 2,411,420 $ (2s8,067) $ (384,312) $ 23,571

2,231
14,037

(1,901,412)

3,151

(392,815)

(1,187,096) ',t8,267 67,441
@T--(2?e-;mOT---J316-3-7TI:-
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EXHIBIT D-2
(Page 2 of 2)

Fiscal Year
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

$ 1 ,503,1 '15

1,038,005
326,672

17,328
5,334

35,321
198,762
450,000

$ 1,494,349

829,014
306,808

14,461

3,892
10,087

243,903
450,000

$ 1,448,456

867,703
326,402
22,574

7,189
3,388

226,067
300,000

$ 1,448,456
867,703
326,402
22,574

7,189
3,388

226,067
300,000

$ 1 ,510,046
1,436,872

343,738
22,317
13,642
97,522

286,311
149,069

$ 1,542,326
1,291,762

359,114
15,400
7,505

73,288
308,501
154,609

3,574,537 3,352,514 3,201,779 3,201,779 3,859,517 3,752,505

(450,000)

55,019

(149,069) (1

(437,028) (442,308) (298,675) (298,675) (94,0s0) (84,178)

_$_9,13?,s99_ _$_2,e10299_ _$__2,e03,191_ _$_2,e03,_191_ _$_9199,46?_ _$_9,668,32?_

$ (3,122) $ (37,659) $ s2,37s $ (3e,476) $ 31,86't $ (364,680)

12,972 7,692

(4s0,000)

1,325

(300,000)

1,325

(300,000)

70,431

54 609)

(336,s62) (44s,597) (79,779) 613,518 894,373 321 174
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS .
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total general fund

All other Governmental Funds
Restricted, reported in:

Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Special Revenue Funds

Unassigned
Total all other governmental funds

Source: Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports

$ 171,880 $ n,qA3 $ 102,456 $

$
2,810

1,977 ,772-S-t,eBo-FE

$
2,817

96,370
1,522,282

T-J6-z/6-d-

$
2,834

96,238
1,267,108

-S-=ko-6Js-o--

$
2,872

108,057
1,006,476

-_$ 

1,1i?,40s_-

$ 137

64,342
(ee,026)

74,857
(e6,370)

89,146
(96,238)

$ ss,eo+

121,116

92,284

$ 213,400196 $ SS 950
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EXHIBIT D.3

FiscalYear
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$ $ $ $
2,930 2,953 2,955 2,976

1,002,386 1,077,276 1,330,196 1,773,048
$ 1,005,316 $ 1,080,229 $ 1,333,151 $ 1,776,024

2022-2023 2023-2024

$-
3,112

1,764,719
TI'767.831

$ 42,333
3,277

1,376,904
$ 1,422,514

$ 154,136 $ 193,332 $ 155,733 $ $ 230,752

82,952 83,182 80,143 165,177

$ 237,088 $ 276,514 $ 235,876 $ 329,777 $ 366,447 $ 395,929

208,089

121,688

211,623

154,824

$
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS'
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

2014-2015 2015-20't6 2016-20't7 2017-2018

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees

Hotel/Motel taxes
Other taxes

Charges for services
Licenses, permits, and fees
Recreation fees

Court fines and fees
Rentals

Contributions
lntergovernmental
lnterest income

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
Legislative
General government

Public safety
Streets
Culture and recreation

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest charges
Debt issuance costs
Paying agent fees

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

lssuance of bonds
lssuance of tax notes

lssuance of right-to-use lease liabilities
lssuance of SBITA liabilties
Premium on refunding bonds issued
Payment to refunded bonds escrow agent
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of note payable

Transfers in

Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

$ 1,460,087

I ,1 00,538
398,688

3,476
291,895
42,189

83,777
1 0,1 00

106,974
26,719

6,079
440,711

3,97't,233

$ 1,456,297
700,297

400,1 58

21,310
1,408

4,375
45,023

32,002
59,266

9,531

32,886
28,701
9,998

't 80,160

$ 1 ,499,1 94

699,433
347,271

22,877

2,409
4,745

23,010
24,193
68,432
9,428

63,375
36,441
21,472

1 88,1 89

$ 1 ,481 ,1 95
905,428
308,005

22,534
2,774
3,1 60

24,440
26,626

92,238
5,558

25,964

328,752
29,705

166 720
3,423,0992,981,412 3,010,469

46,898
't,0't2,967

1,024,512
239,924
230,610

664,132

46,617
1,009,581

1,009,448

377,778
438,726
7'17,0'17

16,740
961,556

1,057,885
398,517
459,473
159,177

487,330
149,',t75

40

17,085
't,178,657

1 ,1 04,831

336,1 1 8

456,531
456,880

418,213
'136,052

740,000
220,340

3s,143
1,570

534,349
151,181

1t0
1,500 1 500 1,500

4,216,096 4,286,307 3,691,393 4,105,867

(244,863) (1,304,895) (680,924) (682,768)

1,445,000

44,973
(2,654,830)

't27,490

I ,910,348
(8,e36)

65,000
387,160
418,702
(25,887\

7',t,602

450,822
(57,375\

15,231

576,629
(3e,831)

864,045 844,975 465,049 552 029

$ 619,182 $ (459,920) $ (215,875) $ (130,739)

't5.2%

Source: Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports
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EXHIBIT D"4

Fiscal Year

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 202',t-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

$ 1,490,864

1,038,005

326,672
17,328

5,334
1,120

19,086
23,793

1 18,001

11,668
62,499

270,746
35,321

188,919

$ 1,547,247

1,440,766

331 ,171

31 ,378
11,354
21,090

36,720
25,160

59,317
10,529

183,477

42,560
20,769

407,813

1,520,862

1,436,872

343,738
22,317
't3,642

3,1 03

38,535
25,217

118,512

11,720

346,684
68,998

97,522
286,311

3,609,356 3,107,467 3,386,482 4,169,351 4,334,033

1,522,575
1,291,762

359,1 14

15,400

7,505
2,634

29,289

24,279
152,799

13,808

90,760
72,526
73,288

277 186

3,932,925

$ 1,527,063

829,014

306,808
14,461

3,892

705
21,518
10,991

41,396

11,170
21,858

64,601

10,087

1,464,855

867,703

326,402
22,574

7,189

885
22,255

28,804
72,151
12,578

113,914

217,7't7
3,388

226,067

$ $ $

243 903

17,007
't,122,236

1,263,084
282,024
463,049
439,515

17,174

94'.t,748

1,166,447

352,028

369,604
177,227

462,086
111,826

735

38,694

948,102
1 ,1 96,269

381 ,470
354,045
198,898

40,328
1 ,01 3,914
1,213,100

325,202
390,488

320,153

399,476
53,766

750

57,228
1,057,531

1,654,485

454,784
404,587

712,157

404,520

54,963
20,000

750

36,040
1,141,594
1,593,354

496,804
406,174

695,428

509,694
63,558

825

445,'142

124,043

1,500

256,203

66,432
32,412

1,800

4,157,600 3,598,875 4,821 ,005 943 713,474,325 3,757,177 4

(548,244) 1.408) (87,843) 412,174 (486,972) (1 ,010 546)

9,843

526,940
(76,940)

155,747

534,604
(84,604)

2,025,000

(2,024,873\

300.000

24,600
270,000

96,400

436,605
(287,536)

287,418
220,504

32,1 80

154,609106,21s
(6,215)

459,843 605,747 300 't27 124,600 515,469

114,339 $ 212,284 $ 536,774 $ 28,497 $ (315,835)

16.8o/o '13.20/o

694,711

$ (88,401) $

15.3o/o 9.9olo
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY.
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

Estimated Market Value
Mineral/Utility

Property

Less:
Tax-Exempt

Property

Total Taxable
Assessed

Value

EXHIBIT D.5

Total
Direct

Tax Rate
(per $100 val.)

Fiscal
Year *

Real
P

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

$ 157,884,990

161,451,620

168,572,460

174,220,899

173,693,995

't77,0't9,290

180,617,630

185,796,750

203,539,775

319,912,990

$ 24,503,800

24,667,140

15,470,600

14,161,930

12,241,590

21,942,220

21,003,504

21,646,600

1 1,295,650

35,078,660

$ 61,997,830

63,628,210

67,677,670

68,402,200

67,941,890

77,169,938

78,037,370

77,932,760

85,628,500

136,705,300

$ 120,390,960

122,490,550

116,365,390

119,980,629

117,993,695

121,791,572

123,583,764

129,510,590

129,206,925

218,286,350

1 .1 80000

1.1 80000

1.263505

1.219039

1.245746

1.200000

1.141670

1.125000

1.261860

0.695901

Source: Jack County Appraisal District

* Note: The information received from the Jack County Appraisal District relates to the next fiscal year of the City
as property values are assessed in one calendar year and payable in the next.
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EXHIBIT D.6

City Direct Rates

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES .
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Tax Rates Per S100 Valuation

Rates

Operaling/
General

General

Obligation

Debt
Service

Jack

Jack County

County Special

Jacksboro

Faith

Community Jack Grand

Hospital WCID #1 Total Totat
Fiscal

Year

20't4-2015

2015-2016
20't6-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019
20'19-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022

2022-2023
2023-2024

0.617879

0.722250

0.743630
0.814423

0.815991
0.781500

0.941080
0.887016

0.920265
0.538720

0.562121

0.457750
0.519875

0.4046't6
0.429755

0.418500
0.200590

0.237984
0.205921

0.157181

Total

1.1 80000
L180000
1.263505

1.219039
1.245746

1,200000
1.141670

1.125000
't.'t26'186

0.695901

0.323584

0.304474
0.359503

0.386792
o.428547

0.435130
0.415830

0.429590
0.404635

0.342044

0.068527
0.064386

0.091941

0.108522

0.1 10306
0.1 13045

0.108560

0.1 14190

0.107520

0.090841

1.500000

1.500000
1.500000

1.500000
1.500000

1.430000

1.426400
1.423400
'1 .381700
1j29200

o.312757

0.312757
o.312757

0.295000

0.31 5000

0.31 5000

0.31 5000
0.31 5000

0.309000
0.288239

0.010234
o.o10234

0.011146
0.012069

0.012946

0.01249'l
0.011973

0.0't2237
0.010570

0.007050

2.215102
2.19't851

2.275347
2.302383

2.366799
2.305666

2.277763
2.294417
2.2't3425

1.857374

2.777223

2.649601

2.795222
2.706999
2.796554

2.724't66
2.475353
2.53240',!

2.415346
2.O14555

ISD

Source: Jack County Appraisal District
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EXHIBIT D-7

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

PRI NCI PAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2023-2024* 2014-2015 *

Taxable
Assessed

Value Rank

Percentage

of Total
Assessed
Valuation

Taxable
Assessed

Value Rank

Percentage

of Total

Assessed
ValuationTaxpayer

Nine Downhole Technologies

Crombie Properties LLC

Jacksboro Supply

Jacksboro National Bank

Oncor Electric

Hurd Crane LLC

Swan Real Estate Management, LP

ARG Lumar LLC

Four Stars Ford

4 Gen LLC

Stevens Transport

Double K Well Service

One Cypress Trucking

Jacksboro Assisted Living lnc

Jacksboro Pump & Specialty

Brigadier Operating LLC

$ 17,517,020

4,442,770

4,128,310

3,394,350

2,848,320

2,288,590

1,740,800

1,449,620

1,386,590

1,247,950

$

I

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

10

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

8.02o/o

2.04%

1.89o/o

1.55%

130%

1.05%

0.80%

0.66%

0.640/o

0.57o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

N/A

N/A

10

N/A

N/A

N/A

1.620/o

1.58o/o

2.960/o

1.35o/o

N/A

N/A

N/A

4.31o/o

2.47o/o

1.17o/o

0.83%

Q.79o/o

0.67o/o

$ N/A

N/A

N/A

1,986,380

1,940,380

3,631,020

1,654,380

5,275,630

3,030,110

1,428,000

1,019,620

965,660

826,760

4

5

2

6

N/A

3

7

I

9

18.52o/o $ 21,757,940 17.75o/o

Source: Jack County Appraisal District

* Note: The information received from the Jack County Appraisal District relates to the next fiscal year of the City

as property values are assessed in one calendar year and payable in the next.
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EXHIBIT D€

Fiscal
Year

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

Taxes Levied
Within the
Fiscal Year
of the Levy

Adjustments
to Levy in

Subsequent
Years

Adjusted
Taxes Levied

for the
Fiscal Year

Collected Within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections

in Subsequent
Years

Total Collections to Date

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS -
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

$ 1,419,800

1,445,305

1,47't,016

1,463,020

1,469,902

1,461,499

1,410,919

1,457,392

1,453,983

1,545,591

$$ (2,1s4)'

(5,038)

(2,586)

(6,451)

(4,552)

(14,590)

(4,4e5)

(7,000)

(8,826)

(28,794)

$ 1,417,606

1,440,267

1,468,430

1,456,569

1,465,350

1,446,909

1,406,424

1,450,392

1,445,157

1,516,797

$ 1,365,197

1,374,551

1,4'18,053

1,407 ,276

1,396,848

1,396,596

1,366,705

1,417,430

1,417 ,821

1,466,569

Amount
Percentage

of Levy

96.30%

95.44o/o

96.57%

96.620/o

95.33%

96.520h

97.180h

97.730/0

98.110/o

96.69o/o

Amount

1,415,364

1,435,421

1,465,576

1,451,848

1,458,295

1,440,289

1,399,650

1,442,099

1,433,990

1,466,569

Percentage
of Levy

99.84o/o

99.66%

99.81%

99.68%

99.52o/o

99.54Yo

99.52Vo

99.430

99.23Vo

96.69%

50,'167 $

60,870

47,523

44,572

61,447

43,693

32,945

24,669

16,169

Source: Jack County Appraisal District
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Water
Revenues

Sewer
Revenues

Sanitation
Revenues

Other
Revenues

EXHIBIT D.9

Totals

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

WATER, SEWER AND SANITATION REVENUES.
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
Year

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

Source: City records

$ 1,344,403

"t,282,968

1,319,658

1,366,245

1,284,294

1,334,602

1,275,245

1,307,675

1,455,394

1 ,466,915

$ 851,336

822,452

846,664

856,841

829,711

831,740

823,301

799,011

910,785

887,425

$ 626,085

604,059

638,816

64s,122

680,1 29

687,830

705,750

764,719

853,320

914,149

$ 2,889,938

2,771,248

2,870,093

2,927,298

2,860,2"14

2,934,619

2,877,069

2,958,413

3,308,895

3,341,026

$ 68,114

61,769

64,955

59,090

66,080

80,447

72,773

87,008

89,396

72,537
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE .
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Governmental Activities (1 )

Fiscal
Year

General
Obligation

Bonds

Certificates
of

Obligation
Lease

Liabilities
SBITA

Liabilities
Notes

Payable

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

Notes:

1,383,903

1,045,690

752,478

559,266

356,053

147,841

2,149,629

1,908,931

1,670,718

1,402,906

3,140,000

2,965,000

2,800,000

2,630,000

2,445,000

2,250,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

1 10,950

138,484

349,360 166,032

127,490

490,301

457,971

399,758

339,436

276,987

240,288

285,731

475,076

358,418

(1) Debt information is from the City's accounting records and
are detailed in the notes to the financial statements

(2) See Exhibit D-13 for population data
" lnformation is not available.
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General
Obligation

Bonds
Lease

Liabilities

Total
Primary

Government

Percentage
of Personal

lncome

EXHIBIT D.1O

Per
Capita (2)

Certificates
of

Obligation

305,000

255,000

230,000

205,000

180,000

155,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

2,740,000

Business-$pe Activities (1 )

2,545,513

2,099,622

1,703,731

1,417,840

1,121,948

811,057

770,166

646,760

525,869

372,094

7,501,906

6,855,613

5,944,180

5,211,864

4,442,437

3,640,885

3,280,083

3,099,523

2,890,212

5,475,043

$ 1,619

$ 1,480

$ 1,283

$ 1 ,155

$ 985

$ 841

$ 761

$ 707

$ 687

$ 1,294

67,151

40,065

86,233
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EXHIBIT D.1I

Fiscal
Year

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

Notes:

Obligation
Bonds

of
Obligation

Percentage of
ActualTaxable

Value of
Property (2)

Per
Capita (3)

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING -
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

General Bon

Total

6.13%

5.20o/o

4.71%

4.01o/o

3.48o/o

2.76%

2.46%

2.04%

1.73%

2.07%

(1) lncludes general bonded debt for both Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities
and includes bond premiums

(2) See Exhibit D-2 for property tax data
(3) See Exhibit D-13 for population data

3,929,416

3,145,312

2,456,209

1,977,106

1,478,001

9s8,898

2,919,795

2,555,691

2,196,587

1,775,000

3,445,000

3,220,000

3,030,000

2,835,000

2,625,000

2,405,000

120,000

80,000

40,000

2,740,000

7,374,416

6,365,312

5,486,209

4,812,106

4,103,001

3,363,898

3,039,795

2,635,691

2,236,587

4,515,000

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

1,592

1,374

1,184

1,067

910

777

705

601

531

1,067
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

DTRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT (UNAUDITED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Gross
Governmental

Activities
Debt (1)

Percentage
Applicable
to City of

Jacksboro (2)

EXHIBIT D.12

Amount
Applicable
to City of

Jacksboro

Direct:

City of Jacksboro

Overlapping:

Jack County

Jacksboro lndependent School District

Total overlapping

Total direct and overlapping bonded debt

13.260/0

60,026,000 22.01%

60,026,000

$ 62,302,716

Sources:

(1) Municipal Advisory Council of Texas
(2) The estimated percentage is based on a formula using assessed values of property

$ 2,276,716 100.00% $ 2,276,716

13,211,723

13,211,723

$ 15,488,439
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EXHIBIT D.l3

Fiscal
Year

City of
Jacksboro
Estimated

Population (1)

City of
Jacksboro
Personal

lncome (2)

City of
Jacksboro

Per
Capita

Personal
lncome

Median
Age (1)

N/A

School
Enrollment (3)

Jack
County

Unemployment
Rate (4)

CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS .
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

2013-2014

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

Source

4,523

4,633

4,633

4,633

4,511

4,511

4,328

4,311

4,387

4,209

4,232

(1) Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation
(2) lnformation not readily available
(3) Jacksboro lndependent School District
(4) Texas Association of Counties

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

992

960

1,008

1,034

1,032

1,058

1,063

1,075

1,078

1,101

1,082

3.8o/o

4.3%

4.2o/o

4.9%

3.1%

3.7%

3.7o/o

3.7o/o

3.3o/o

3.8o/o

3.8o/o
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EXHIBIT D-14

CIry OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO (UNAUDITED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2024

2023-2024
rcentage

2014-2015

Employer

Jacksboro lndependent School District

Faith Community Hospital

Management & Training Corp.

Nine Energy Services

Jack County

Jacksboro Health Care Center

City of Jacksboro

Jacksboro National Bank

Lowes

Oakridge Oil & Gas

Conections Corp. of America

Crest Pumping Technologies

Geer Tank Trucks

Renewable Energy Services of America, lnc.

Employees

170

,t56

130

82

78

55

40

29

25

25

Rank

of Total
City

Employment

4.09%

3.61o/o

3.33o/o

2.OOo/o

1.71o/o

1.07o/o

0.86%

0.71o/o

0.620/o

0.48o/o

Percentage
of Total

City
EmploymentEmployees

175

70

80

4'l

35

25

Rank

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

10

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

250

187

33

30

N/A

4

b

7

10

N/A

N/A

1

2

I

9

1',!.420/o

4.57o/o

5.220/o

2.670/o

2.28o/o

1.630/o

'16.31o/o

12.20o/o

2.15%

1.96%

3

5

Totals 18.460/o

Sources: Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation and Oncor Economic Development Department

926790 60.410/o
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

FULL.TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS (UNAUDTTED)

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

General Government

Public Safety

Cultural and Recreational

Street Maintenance

Water and Sewer

Total

Source: City Budget Office

12.00

12.00

4.00

4.00

13.00

1 1.00

13.00

3.00

4.00

13.00

7.00

13.00

4.00

4.00

1 1.00

7.00

14.00

4.00

4.00

10.00

45.00 44.00 39.00 39.00
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EXHIBIT D.l5

FiscalYear
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-202',t 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

7.00

14.00

4.00

4.00

10.00

8.00

15.00

4.00

4.00

10.00

8.00

12.00

4.00

4.00

9.00

8.00

14.00

4.00

4.00

9.00

8.00

11.00

4.00

4.00

9.00

8.00

16.00

3.00

4.00

9.00

39.00 41.00 37.00 39.00 36.00 40.00
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CIry OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

OPERATING I NDICATORS BY FU NCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017

General government
Council directed programs
Council meetings
Proclamations, ordinances, resolutions
Positions filled
GFOA ACFR Award

Public Safety
Municipal court

New cases filed
Warrants cleared

Police
Number of employees
Calls for service

Fire
Number of employees
Number of fire runs

Animalcontrol
Calls for service
Animals impounded
Citations issued
Adoptions *

Development Services
Building permits

Cultural and Recreational
Parks and Recreation

Aquatics daily admissions
Athletics / recreation participation
Activity center memberships
Camping permits *

Rentals *

Park acreage maintained

Water and Sewer
Number of water consumers
Treated water (million gallons)
Treated effluent water (million gallons)

Source: City Departments
* Began tracking in 2015-16

5
27
30
14

1

5

27
30
14

1

5
27
29
12
I

5
23
20
25

1

346
63

10

1,597

7
1,485

635
124

5

1,383

425
65

503
40

10
1,777

3

1,028
5

1 ,136

3
958

10
1,539

237
286

25
47

309

3,219
123
147
56
37
94

1,175
158

31

310
133
41

174
330

20
109

194

93

1,638
200

17

228 289

3,439
155
80
50
20
94

130
290

2,505
120
169

93

1,638
202
130

1,656
214
139

1,650
225
116
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EXHIBIT D.16

FiscalYear
2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2022-2023 2023-2024

5
20
27

6
1

5
19
29

6
1

5

21

26
6
1

5
23
41

6
1

5
21

41

6
1

5

20
30

6
1

609
63

10
1,828

3
1,089

332

3

1,023

10
2,854

3
1,149

524

622
85
61

72
21

94

7
2,193

375
283

8
134

794

1,154
154
155
117
27
94

1,231
37

10
3,980

3
1,108

409

1,842
93

I
4,778

4
1,706

724
110

722
117

10

1,736

589
135

3

876

113
228

5
39

189
199

8

63

183
216

8
30

307
210

4
98

439
324

o

121

314

2,919
120
68
27
25
94

2

325

,042
80
77
25
29
94

1,554
59
72
94
12

94

2,235
54

100
62
15
94

1,695
257
130

1,688
245
122

1,725
220
148

1,549
215
129

1,700
233
128

1,741
266
141

99


